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Kobayashi Pharmaceutical has grown into a 

developer and manufacturer of not only OTC 

pharmaceuticals, but also a wide range of 

sanitary products, deodorizing air fresheners 

and nutritional supplements, each of which have 

fulfilled the latent needs of our customers. This 

represents our originality and innovative spirit. 

In addition, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical is 

also working hard to develop drug products 

that fulfill the expectations of the customer. 

(See page 21 for information on our governance 

practices and CSR initiatives)

Developing and Manufacturing 
a Broad Mix of Innovative 
Consumer Goods

Providing Innovative Healthcare and Lifestyle Solutions
Discovering, creating and providing solutions that meet the latent needs of our customers 

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical has produced a series of market leading products that greatly contribute 
to the health, comfort and convenience of people and society, under the slogan of “you make a wish and 
we make it happen.” Moving forward, we will continue to display the spirit of innovation and originality 
in our work processes and develop products from a customer-centric perspective. This, coupled with 
our pursuit of manufacturing high quality products that fulfill the high expectations of our customers, 
will enable Kobayashi Pharmaceutical to continue to create and cultivate new markets. 

Ammeltz Bluelet Sarasarty

Ammeltz represented 
a breakthrough in 
innovation at the time 
of its development 
because it replaced the 
traditional hot or cold 
press commonly used 
as a remedy for shoulder 
stiffness in Japan, with 
a liquid medication 
applied directly to the 
affected area using a 
rubber cap applicator. 
Ammeltz has won 
enormous support from 
consumers for its ease 
of use and efficacy.

Bluelet is a deodorizer 
and cleanser for flush 
toilets first devised 
by current Kobayashi 
Pharmaceutical Chairman 
and CEO Kazumasa 
Kobayashi during his 
experience living and 
studying in the United 
States. Forty years since 
its launch, Bluelet today 
enjoys a domestic 
market share 
exceeding 70%. 

Sarasarty is a pantiliner 
that relieves the discomfort 
of a woman’s monthly 
cycle. The product name 
is a clever play on words 
meaning “30 days of 
freshness”. “Sarasara” 
refers to a dry and clean 
feeling in Japanese, while 
“sarty” is the equivalent of 

“thirty”. As it is not a specialized maker of feminine 
hygiene products, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical 
received a great deal of attention when Sarasarty 
was first released. 

On sale since 1967 On sale since 1969 On sale since 1988

Dirt

Sheet thickness is 
only 1mm

External anti-inflammatory that relieves 
shoulder stiffness and muscle aches

Toilet tank cleanser that ensures toilet 
cleanliness

Japan’s first women’s sanitary sheets 

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical was established in 1886 as 

a wholesaler of Western liquors, cosmetics and general 

merchandise. Three years later, in 1889, the company 

launched its pharmaceuticals division. In 1895, the company 

established the Pharmaceutical Sales and Manufacturing 

Division with the purpose of creating medicines that would 

contribute to society’s overall health. The division 

commenced the development and manufacture of 10 

over-the-counter proprietary pharmaceuticals that 

included Tamushichinki, a medicine for athlete’s foot. 

This marked the beginning of Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical’s unwavering ambition to continually 

meet the challenge of developing products that provide 

society and the lives of people with comfort. 

Originally 
founded as 
Kobayashi 
Seidaido Ltd., 
an unlimited 
general 
partnership

10 pharmaceuticals 
released in 1894

Ion cleaner
ingredient

Toilet surface

Founder 
Chubei 

Kobayashi 

Founded as a Wholesaler, Transformed into a Developer and 
Manufacturer of Consumer Products and Pharmaceuticals

 Company Profile
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Net Sales

129.1
(¥ Billion)

“You make a wish and we make it happen.” 

This phrase embodies the essence of developing 

products not for existing markets but for new markets. 

It also represents Kobayashi Pharmaceutical’s 

marketing prowess, used to tap and cultivate new 

markets, growing that market and then capturing 

top market share. This is the business model of 

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical. (See page 12 for 

more information on our consumer products 

business model)

Establishing a Business Model that 
Develops and Cultivates New 
Untapped Markets Plans, strategies, beliefs and other statements 

concerning future business operations of 

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. included 

in this annual report are forward-looking 

statements based not on historical facts but 

on management’s assumptions and beliefs in 

light of information currently available. 

These forward-looking statements include 

risks, known and unknown, and uncertainties. 

Actual management achievements and 

business results may therefore differ significantly 

from forecasts in this annual report.
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This division is engaged in the planning, 

research, development and manufacturing of 

proprietary products, with approximately 140 

brands under management separated into 7 

categories, such as deodorizing air fresheners, 

OTC pharmaceuticals and oral hygiene products. 

Consumer Products Segment

In Japan, Kobayashi Medical Co., Ltd. imports 

and markets the latest medical devices from 

medically advanced nations. 

Internationally, US operating subsidiary eVent 

Medical Inc. manufactures and markets 

ventilators. 

Medical Devices Segment

Medical
Devices Segment

¥12.1 billion

Other

¥1.6 billion

Stick-on cooling gel sheets for 
the forehead

Eye wash solution that flushes out dirt 
and foreign particles from the eye

An oral Chinese herbal medicine used to 
breakdown and burn abdominal fat 

Netsusama Sheet Eyebon Nicitol 85

Netsusama Sheet, a cold 
compress gel sheet that 
uses heat vaporization, 
became a huge hit because 
of its sheer convenience. 
The sheet becomes cold 
immediately after opening, 
therefore requiring no 
pre-cooling, and can be 
affixed directly to the area 
that requires attention.

Nicitol 85 is a class 2 
OTC pharmaceutical 
product that combines 
the extract of 18 herbal 
medicines to reduce 
obesity. Nicitol 85 has 
become popular among 
middle-aged and older 
men who are concerned 
by increased abdominal 
fat deposits resulting 
from metabolic syndrome 
or other conditions. 

On sale since 1994 On sale since 1997 On sale since 2006

Consumer 
Products Segment

¥115.4 billion

Company Profile 

Consolidated Financial Highlights 

To Our Shareholders and Investors 

Interview with the President

Business Overview

Corporate Governance

Directors, Corporate Auditors 
and Officers

Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis

Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Auditors

History

Group Companies

Corporate Data / Investor Information

Breakdown of Net Sales (Refer to page 11 – Business Overview)

Eyebon, a new concept 
in eye health. The Eyebon 
solution is poured into 
a special cup designed 
to cover the entire 
surface of the eye, and 
by blinking, any protein 
buildup, dust and other 
fine particles are 
removed. The product 
has gained popularity 
for its effectiveness in 
preventing various eye 
diseases and reducing 
the effect of pollen 
allergy. 

Heat

Heat
Heat

Heat
Heat

Heat

Heat Heat

Heat
Heat Heat
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2001 2005200420032002

¥185,001

123,140

61,860

48,053

13,807

11,452

6,019

3,961

(817)

2,157

4,926

1,774

64,849

26,000

57,871

10,067

38,436

106,391

6,978

3,461

212.34

17.5

1,355.78

33.4

7.5

3.3

112.1

12.1

17.1

36.1

0.09

¥210,922

141,675

69,247

53,394

15,852

12,839

6,605

12,046

11,770

3,480

2,631

1,785

77,315

27,758

65,925

9,936

49,267

125,679

11,390

7,859

231.25

21.0

1,747.98

32.8

7.5

3.1

117.3

10.5

14.1

39.2

0.16

¥211,670

141,388

70,282

54,159

16,123

11,825

6,677

6,971

4,613

3,350

2,441

2,010

80,030

24,567

64,297

9,093

54,454

128,326

15,733

5,417

157.25

21.0

1,307.16

33.2

7.6

3.2

124.5

11.1

12.9

42.4

0.10

¥204,647

139,404

65,242

51,613

13,629

10,923

6,595

4,038

(2,893)

2,598

4,329

1,778

72,758

28,301

62,644

13,218

44,427

120,855

10,114

9,194

232.64

18.5

1,567.12

31.9

6.7

3.2

116.1

10.7

15.9

36.8

0.21

¥215,708

143,912

71,795

56,096

15,698

12,769

6,730

8,364

4,428

3,239

5,020

2,115

86,704

25,003

65,007

8,959

60,116

134,629

21,697

3,034

160.64

33.0

1,443.30

33.3

7.3

3.1

133.4

10.8

11.7

44.7

0.05

Millions of yen

Millions of yen

Yen

%

Consolidated Financial Highlights Years ended March 31

Note 1. The removal of the Wholesale Operation from the scope 

of consolidation in a stock swap in January 2008 resulted 

in a significant drop in sales, however the impact on 

income was minimal.

Note 2. “Accounting Standards for Measurement of Inventories” has been applied since fiscal 2009. As a result, the valuation of inventory

and the valuation/disposal loss have been booked as cost of sales rather than as non-operating expenses and extraordinary losses, 

which led to a decline in operating income.

1 Free cash flows = Cash flows from operating activities + Cash flows from investing activities.        2 Capital expenditures as shown in Segment Information in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

3 Total Net Assets in 2006 and preceding years does not include minority interests.        4 Working capital: Current assets at the fiscal year-end minus Current liabilities.                     

5 Return on assets = Net profit before income tax net income / Average total assets ×100        6 Debt-equity ratio: Interest-bearing debt at the fiscal year-end divided by Shareholders’ equity.

For the Year

Net Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Operating Income

Income before Income Taxes and Minority Interests

Net Income

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Free Cash Flows 1

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Capital Expenditures 2

R&D Expenses

At Year-end

Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

Current Liabilities

Long-term Liabilities

Total Net Assets 3

Total Assets

Working Capital 4

Interest-bearing Debt

Per Share Data

Net Income

Cash Dividends

Net Assets

Financial Ratios

Gross Profit to Net Sales Ratio

Operating Income to Net Sales Ratio

Net Income to Net Sales Ratio

Current Ratio

ROA 5

ROE

Equity Ratio

Debt-equity Ratio (times) 6

(¥ Billion)

20102008 200920072006

246.8 257.0
228.8

125.6 129.1

(¥ Billion)

20

15

10

5

0

300

200

100

0

20102009200820072006 20102009200820072006

16.8 15.8
17.0

8.1
7.06.8

(¥ Billion)

10.0

7.5

5.0

2.5

0

7.4
8.2

9.2

7.2

3.73.23.0

20

15

10

5

0

10.0

7.5

5.0

2.5

0

7.013.2

Net Income to Net Sales RatioNet IncomeOperating Income to Net Sales RatioOperating Income

12.6

8.5 8.8

Operating Income / Operating Income 
to Net Sales Ratio

Net Income / Net Income to Net Sales RatioNet Sales

Note 1 Note 2

(%) (%)

18.518.0
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201020102008 200920072006

¥246,852

167,239

79,613

62,734

16,879

14,009

7,474

13,159

6,745

3,414

2,797

2,377

98,906

22,788

72,040

10,175

66,811

151,945

26,866

1,633

179.17

38.0

1,617.10

32.3

6.8

3.0

137.3

10.6

11.8

44.0

0.02

¥228,826

147,638

81,187

62,611

18,576

15,800

8,504

12,192

5,767

3,765

2,895

2,813

66,069

15,236

37,940

7,286

77,182

122,409

28,128

726

205.62

54.0

1,863.24

35.5

8.1

3.7

174.1

10.9

11.2

63.0

0.01

¥125,693

57,013

68,679

52,861

15,818

16,270

8,853

12,849

11,467

4,214

3,468

3,361

73,172

17,618

39,834

9,011

76,364

125,210

33,337

645

215.89

58.0

1,861.14

54.6

12.6

7.0

183.7

12.4

11.5

60.9

0.01

¥257,022

172,304

84,717

66,688

18,029

16,038

8,297

8,833

(2,970)

3,375

2,229

2,476

102,102

22,279

77,028

10,291

77,236

164,555

25,074

3,414

200.77

50.0

1,799.87

33.0

7.0

3.2

132.6

9.5

11.7

45.2

0.05

¥129,184

57,295

71,889

54,848

17,041

14,553

9,250

15,319

10,618

4,257

3,562

3,962

85,209

14,779

39,025

8,344

84,603

131,972

46,184

1,708

225.88

62.0

2,061.79

55.6

13.2

7.2

218.3

13.3

11.5

64.0

0.02

$1,388,478

615,810

772,668

589,510

183,158

156,417

99,420

164,660

114,133

45,755

38,284

42,584

915,832

158,846

419,443

89,682

909,319

1,418,444

496,389

18,358

2.428

0.666

22.160

Millions of yen % Thousands of U.S. dollars

% Thousands of U.S. dollars

%  U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Yen

%

Change

2.8

0.5

4.7

3.8

7.7

(10.6)

4.5

19.2

(7.4)

1.0

2.7

17.9

16.4

(16.1)

(2.0)

(7.4)

10.8

5.4

38.5

165.2

4.6

6.9

10.8

11.5

200

150

100

50

0

100

75

50

25

0

20

15

10

5

0

(%)(%)

20102009200820072006

10.6 9.5
10.9

11.8 11.2

11.5

(¥ Billion)

20102009200820072006

66.8 77.2 77.1 76.3 84.6
151.9 164.5 122.4 125.2 131.9

45.2

100

75

50

25

0

30.0

22.5

15.0

7.5

0

(Yen)

20102009200820072006

50 54 58 62

27.4

11.763.0 64.060.9

44.0

21.2
24.9 26.3 26.9

ROEPayout Ratio ROACash Dividends per ShareEquity RatioTotal Assets Total Net Assets

13.3

Total Assets / Total Net Assets / Equity Ratio Cash Dividends per Share / Payout Ratio ROE / ROA

(%)

38

12.4
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Yutaka Kobayashi
President and 

Chief Operating Officer

Kazumasa Kobayashi
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

Enhancing corporate value through corporate brand management

Although there were some signs of recovery in the Japanese 

economy in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, the operating 

environment remained harsh for the Kobayashi Pharmaceutical 

Group. Deteriorating corporate revenues and job insecurity caused 

consumers to be more cautious in their spending, which led in turn 

to deflation. The declining birth rate and growing proportion of 

elderly making up the population is shrinking the market.

Despite this difficult business environment, consolidated 

net sales rose 2.8% year-on-year to ¥129,184 million and net income 

increased 4.5% to ¥9,249 million for the twelfth consecutive year 

of income growth.

We were able to overcome the recession and achieve steady 

growth thanks to the confidence that so many consumers place in 

the Kobayashi Pharmaceutical brand. I am confident that this was 

the result of the proactive corporate brand management that we 

have pursued since 2003. Corporate brand management aims to 

optimize corporate value, and is intended not only to enhance an 

individual product’s brand strength, but also to promote trust in the 

company among consumers. In other words, the ultimate goal of 

this brand management is to improve the power of the Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical brand.  

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group 
continues to grow

Striving for further growth by making our customers’ 
wishes a reality

To Our Shareholders and Investors

We initiated a program of corporate brand management when we 

realized that, despite our many products with high market share, 

it was not widely known that these products were developed by 

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical. In other words, each product’s positive 

individual appeal and name recognition was not having a halo effect 

in terms of increased confidence in our products or in Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical itself. We felt that we had to create a better link 

between the product brand and the corporate brand.

Since its founding, the Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group has 

followed a management policy that defines the Company’s mission 

as providing people and society with comfort through continuous 

“Creativity and Innovation.” Based on this policy, the Group develops 

and provides a wide variety of products. To maximize our corporate 

value, we must not only enhance the brand strength of each product, 

but also raise awareness of the corporate brand to the point that 

customers are confident that a Kobayashi Pharmaceutical product 

provides, by definition, impressive comfort. We will achieve this only by 

ensuring that we become exceptionally customer focused and provide 

Corporate brand management 
is the key to growth

55



As the very structure of the global economy changes with the growth 

of emerging economies and consumer awareness, we are experiencing 

change at a pace which we’ve never seen before. This makes it 

extremely difficult to manage the company’s direction. However,

I think that this is precisely the time to return to our historical roots in 

creativity and innovation while we look ahead to our continued process 

of transformation. For that reason, our management policy for this 

next fiscal year ending in March 2011 is based on the belief that we 

are a creative and innovative ‘work in progress’ in the midst of an era 

of diverse change. We can achieve further breakthroughs by pursuing 

permanent growth and continuing to adapt while remaining true to 

our origins.

We will focus on the Health & Beauty business, made up of the 

three categories of pharmaceuticals, oral hygiene products, and food 

products, to proactively meet the rising demand for healthcare. 

Entering overseas markets is another important aspect of our 

transformation. We hope that this leads to the development of 

products tailored to local needs, particularly in China and other 

Asian markets. 

We will continue to work toward realizing the concept of our 

brand slogan, “You make a wish and we make it happen,” not only in 

Japan but also all over the world and will value our starting point in 

creativity and innovation and continue to transform in order to grow 

further and maximize our corporate brand. Thank you for your 

understanding and support of the Group.

Moving forward, we have identified three priority issues to further 

raise our corporate brand management: pursuing quality in product 

manufacturing, deepening bonds with customers, and raising 

employees’ self-confidence. In addition, we are transforming our 

product development processes and organizational structure.

Consumers increasingly demand higher levels of safety and 

reliability, and we pursue a high standard of quality in product 

manufacturing with the understanding that quality is the key to life 

itself. We set up the Quality Monitoring Division this fiscal period to 

focus on the quality management function for products before they 

are launched, enabling us to monitor quality issues even more 

rigorously than before.

In order to deepen our bonds with customers, we aim to 

increase outreach by using a straightforward message conveyed 

through our key touch-points - product concepts, packaging and 

commercials. We will also respond more rapidly and accurately to the 

inquiries and suggestions directed to our Customer Service Center, 

and use this feedback to improve our production and manufacturing 

processes. 

Employees’ self-confidence is built up when they see the new 

products that they developed being launched into the market, earning 

the support of the customer and achieving sales success. We believe 

it is important to raise morale and communicate Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical’s unique strengths in development to the employees.

We also reorganized Consumer Products into separate 

business divisions during this fiscal period. This will facilitate the 

achievement of all three priority issues.

We will continue to respond to the dramatic changes in 

the market through bold reform and a continual transformation 

of the company in keeping with our mission to pursue “Creativity 

and Innovation.”    

President and 
Chief Operating Officer

Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer

Continuing to boldly transform 
development processes

Valuing our starting point in “Creativity and 

Innovation,” focusing on health care and 
breaking into overseas markets

(August 2010)  

products, services and information that uncover the potential needs of 

consumers. Satisfying our customers enhances our brand value and 

generates substantial profits, which, in turn, gratifies our shareholders 

and employees and optimizes corporate value. This defines our 

corporate brand management, and is the very foundation of our growth.      
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(¥ Billion)

President and Chief Operating OfficerYutaka Kobayashi

Fiscal year ended 

March 31, 2009

Actual

Fiscal year ending 

March 31, 2011

Forecast

Fiscal year ended 

March 31, 2010

Actual

Interview with the President Overview of fiscal 2010 and Outlook for fiscal 2011

125.6

15.8

15.3

8.8

129.1

17.0

17.0

9.2

134.0

18.0

18.3

10.0

Consolidated Earnings Trends

Although the business environment remained harsh, as in the 

previous fiscal year, the Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group achieved 

higher income and sales in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010. 

Net sales rose 2.8% year-on-year to ¥129.1 billion, operating income 

increased 7.7% to ¥17 billion, ordinary income rose 11.3% to ¥17 

billion, and net income gained 4.5% to ¥9.2 billion. This marked the 

twelfth straight year of gains in net income for record-high income in 

this fiscal year.

Sales in the mainstay Consumer Products Division rose 2.6% 

year-on-year to ¥115.5 billion and operating income rose 3.8% to 

¥16.5 billion for both income and sales gains.

There were two reasons for these gains. First, we have had 

great success developing new products. We launched 16 new 

products this fiscal year, with Visrrat Gold a (a Chinese herbal 

anti-obesity medicine that helps reduce excess body fat by 

accelerating fat metabolization) and Chinshite Kongari Sakanayaki 
Pack (a cooking pack that helps grill fish to a golden brown in 

microwave ovens) receiving strong support from customers. These 

new products contributed to sales.

The second factor was the contributions that our existing 

product brands with high market share made to profits. For example, 

Bluelet, which has the largest share of the toilet bowl cleanser 

market, achieved 3% growth in sales and a market share of 77% in 

this fiscal year, which marks the fortieth anniversary since its launch. 

This product enjoys a large market share and is not dragged into 

price wars, thus enabling it to maintain high profitability. In addition, 

Shouyou a (medical toothpaste that prevents periodontal disease) 

and nutritional supplements enjoyed high profitability rates and 

raised the level of overall income. Every month we step up TV 

commercials and other marketing for existing product brands and 

instruct retail stores to focus on expanding sales. This approach 

helps to bolster sales and income. 

Despite a harsh domestic market characterized by stagnant 

spending growth and worsening price deflation, we have posted higher 

bottom-line profit (net income), and thus record-high income gains, 

for 12 straight fiscal years. I believe we were able to achieve this kind 

of growth because we identified promising niche markets and continued 

to bring high value-added products to the market. Niche products 

are products that are essential to the customer, meaning that 

demand will be stable and price competition is unlikely. Moreover, 

lifestyles and personal habits change with the times, creating new 

needs. We can create new markets by developing a series of products 

that meet these needs. In other words, the Group has the potential 

for limitless growth by making customers’ wishes come true in the 

spirit of our mission to pursue “Creativity and Innovation”.

The Medical Device Operation also posted higher sales and 

income. As a result of our strategy of increasing brand recognition and 

raising market share in the orthopedic field and surgery room devices, 

sales rose 6.9% to ¥12.1 billion and operating income recovered from 

What were the results for the fiscal 
year ended March 31, 2010?

Generating higher net income:
Income and sales gains every fiscal year 
for the twelfth straight year.

Valuing our origins in “Creativity and Innovation” while 
expanding into the healthcare field and overseas markets

Net Sales

Operating Income

Ordinary Income

Net Income
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Loss on Disposal Rate of Goods Returned

(¥ Billion)
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8

6

4

2

0
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3.7
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First Four Years

9.08.6

Contribution Ratio of New Products Loss on Disposal / Rate of Goods Returned

a ¥550 million loss in the previous fiscal year to ¥140 million in income. 

Accordingly, we were able to move into the black as planned.

Aspiring to build a strong Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group, we 

identified three areas where the company needed to transform itself 

in order to raise corporate value and strengthen its financial structure: 

transform capacity to create demand, transform into a profit-making 

structure, and transform quality.

We worked to optimize overall operations in order to transform 

our capacity to create demand. Specifically, we reorganized our 

Consumer Products business into two separate divisions. The Health 

& Beauty business consists of the three categories of pharmaceuticals, 

oral hygiene products, and food products, while the Daily Commodity 

business manages deodorizing air fresheners, sanitary products 

including skincare, and household sundries. Originally, the four 

internal companies focusing on one of the four functions of marketing, 

research & development, manufacturing and product marketing 

worked to optimize their own function, but in this fiscal year each of 

the two divisions will include the functions of marketing, research & 

development, manufacturing and product marketing. This new 

structure will facilitate cost-cutting and investment decisions, profit 

management, while ensuring efficient and rapid new product 

development.   Indeed this has already been successful with the 

development and launch of Chinshite Kongari Sakanayaki Pack in 

approximately six months.

To achieve our second goal to transform into a profit-making 

structure, we made extensive cuts in unnecessary costs for disposal, 

inventory and expenses by optimizing processes from production to 

sales. The switch to a business division system is one example of 

this. We confirm progress during management meetings and raise 

awareness in each division to encourage efficient management. I 

expect this to boost profitability going forward.

What were the main initiatives and results 
in the fiscal year ended on March 31, 2010?

We accelerated the speed of development
through overall optimization of the 
Consumer Products Division.

We anticipate higher sales and income despite 
the irregular and harsh environment.

We addressed the third goal of transforming quality by 

establishing the Quality Monitoring Division this fiscal period. This 

independent organization reinforced the quality management function 

for products before they are brought onto market. Previously, the 

same personnel not only conducted quality audits on new products, 

but also tested quality during production, but audits tended to be 

lenient if we consulted on this before the product was launched. For 

this reason, we sought to improve the process by setting up a division 

focusing exclusively on audits prior to product launch. This has 

enabled us to monitor quality issues even more rigorously than before.

We also endeavored to strengthen our global expansion. Our 

International Business Division is under the direct jurisdiction of the 

president so that management decisions can be made faster and 

more accurately. We are also setting up a sales channel through local 

drug stores  in the Chinese market.

We expect the business environment for the Group to be more 

difficult than ever before in the fiscal year ending on March 31, 2011, 

in light of intensifying deflation in Japan and the impact of the global 

recession since Lehman Brothers’ collapse in September 2008, as 

well as an uncertain outlook for spending trends in the domestic 

market. The market is changing dramatically in Japan as a result of 

the declining birth rate and aging population, which threatens to 

shrink our market. We have entered an era that is so irregular that 

our conventional management approaches do not provide a 

sufficient response, and this makes it hard to steer the operations.

I believe that it is particularly in such difficult times that we 

must prioritize the company’s origins in “Creativity and Innovation” 

and focus on developing new products. Our management policy 

for this next fiscal year embraces a return to our starting point in 

creativity and innovation and is based on the belief that we are 

always a work in progress. We devised the four specific policies 

26.7
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Valuing our origins in “Creativity and Innovation” while 
expanding into the healthcare field and overseas markets

Pursue development as the top priority in all areas, including 

products, technology, markets, systems and human resources

Thoroughly entrench a focus on profits by sharing management 

information on sales and income with all employees and raising 

awareness about management planning

Focus on expanding operations in China, the world’s largest 

growth market, and reinforce global expansion

Give Group employees a sense of ownership and responsibility, 

and vigorously promote the establishment of the Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical brand by creating many top-ranking products 

Four Policies to Help the Company Leap Forward in Fiscal 
Year Ending March 31, 2011

The aging society has heightened healthcare needs in recent years, 

so we will reinforce our efforts to accommodate these needs. We 

will focus on pharmaceuticals, oral hygiene products and food 

products and reinforce our new product development and marketing 

processes. We also believe that there is a great deal of growth potential 

in kampo (traditional Chinese medicines) in the pharmaceuticals segment 

and nutritional supplements in the mail-order shopping sector.

Since we began selling the kampo product Urinaru nationwide 

in 2003 under the pharmaceuticals category, we have launched 

seven kampo products throughout Japan. Sales of these products 

rose about 22% this fiscal year compared to the previous year. We 

are pursuing a Kampo Project to research the market potential of kampo 

and sales strategies, and will continue working to expand growth.

We sell nutritional supplements through mail order, and believe 

this offers promising growth opportunities. Sales in the food category, 

which includes nutritional supplements, rose approximately 11% over 

the previous fiscal year, and there is much more room for growth in 

Reinforcing our global expansion is an important issue for us since 

we aspire to transform with the times.

Currently, the International Business Division sells cooling sheets 

for the forehead, deodorizing air fresheners and other products, as 

well as our mainstay body warmers, in 25 countries, including North 

America, China and the UK. In this next fiscal year, we will focus on 

the Chinese market, which has tremendous potential for growth. We 

will continue our test marketing efforts and develop new sales 

channels, as well as consider launching new products.

We anticipate that these efforts would allow us to achieve target 

overseas sales of ¥7.2 billion in the next fiscal year. We aim to bring 

overseas sales up to 10% of total sales in the future.

Thus far, the overseas expansion of the Consumer Products 

Division has consisted of the export and sale of those products 

the domestic market for nutritional supplements compared to the 

European and US markets.

In April 2010, we set up the Technological Innovation Department 

in the Manufacturing Head Office to develop new technology that will 

turn customers’ potential needs into reality. This division is responsible 

for the development of product packaging and manufacturing methods, 

and works together with each business division to promote efficient 

investment, strengthen specialized technologies and pass these 

down. In the next fiscal year, we will not only develop new products, 

but also make development our top priority as we put all of our 

energies into the development of technology, our internal talent, as 

well as new products. 

described below to achieve this. “Work in progress” expresses our  

resolve not to be complacent about the current situation, but to develop 

products meeting customers’ changing needs and pursue various 

reforms to continue our transformation to achieve continuous growth.

By implementing these policies, in the next fiscal year we expect 

to post a 3.7% gain in consolidated sales to ¥134 billion, a 5.6% increase 

in operating income to ¥18 billion, a 7.2% rise in ordinary income to 

¥18.3 billion, and an 8.1% rise in net income to ¥10 billion. This will 

mark the thirteenth consecutive fiscal year of net income gains. 

Interview with the President Overview of fiscal 2010 and Outlook for fiscal 2011

What areas will the Group focus on in 
development and investment allocation?

We will prioritize health care needs and 
focus on kampo and nutritional supplements.

What is the Group’s policy for 
global expansion?

We will focus on the Chinese market and 
work to expand the overseas sales ratio.
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developed and manufactured for the Japanese market that were also 

consistent with overseas needs. However, going forward the entire 

development, manufacturing and sales process will take place in the 

individual overseas regions. Accordingly, there may be opportunities 

for M&A activity with overseas corporations.

We believe that returning profits to shareholders is one of our most 

important management policies. We set aside an appropriate level 

of retained earnings so that we can maintain growth potential and 

a healthy management structure, and pay dividends reflecting our 

consolidated earnings in line with our basic policy to continue the 

stable payment of dividends.

Based on this policy, we will pay dividends to shareholders 

of ¥62 per share (including interim dividends of ¥29 and year-end 

dividends of ¥33 per share), which is equivalent to a dividend payout 

ratio of 27.4%. 

In the fiscal year ending March 31, 2011, we plan to pay 

dividends of ¥66 per common share by investing for further growth 

with a proactive response to healthcare needs and reinforcement of 

our global expansion and raising both sales and income.

The Group will chart a course for growth by putting all of its energies 

into new product development.

No matter how difficult it may be to steer the Group through 

these difficult times, I am confident that valuing our origins in 

creativity and innovation will lead us to the right path and will 

effectively transform every one of us.

Executive officers and employees will work together to ensure 

outstanding customer orientation and create many top-ranking 

products so that we can satisfy even more customers and generate 

higher income to maximize our corporate value.

Our shareholders and investors can expect even stronger 

growth from the Group going forward.

(August 2010)

What is your policy for returning 
profits to shareholders?

We will continue to raise dividends by maintaining a
sound and growth-oriented management structure.

What are your ambitions? 
Do you have a message for shareholders?

Our shareholders can expect great things from 
our efforts to focus resources into new product 
development, our key growth driver.
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The Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group operates a Consumer Products Division that 

provides pharmaceuticals and deodorizing air fresheners as well as a range of other 

products. The Group also has a Medical Devices division that provides medical devices 

to hospitals nationwide in Japan. The mainstay brands of both divisions continue to 

show steady growth. 

For the current term under review ended March 2010, consolidated net sales grew 2.8% 

to ¥129.1 billion, while consolidated operating income rose 7.7% to ¥17 billion. 

Growth in New and Existing Brands 

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical actively raised the visibility of its 

brands and market share by concentrating on the fields of 

orthopedic surgery, respiratory apparatuses and operating 

rooms, where demand is expected to grow in Japan going 

forward. As a result, net sales of the Medical Devices 

Division for the current term totaled ¥12.1 billion, up 6.9% 

year-over-year, while operating income increased ¥600 

million to ¥140 million. For the current term ending in March 

2011, we forecast net sales of ¥12.7 billion, up 4.9% over 

fiscal 2010, and operating income of ¥300 million, up 8.7%.

Medical Devices

Pharmaceuticals Oral hygiene products Food products Sanitary products Household sundries Body warmers

Kobayashi Medical Co., Ltd. 

Acrofix CONMED System 5000 Parker Flex-Tip 
Tracheal Tube

Inspiration Bard I.C. Silver 
Foley Tray

Bard X-Port isp

eVent Medical Ltd. Medicon, Inc.  Equity-method affiliate
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In the fiscal year under review, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical 

proactively responded to the needs of its customers by 

launching new products and expanding sales of existing 

brands. As a result, net sales of the Consumer Products 

Division for fiscal 2010 rose 2.6% year-over-year to 

¥115.5 billion, while operating income reached ¥16.5 

billion, up 3.8% over the previous fiscal year. For the 

current term ending in March 2011, we expect to achieve 

net sales of ¥120 billion, up 3.9% over fiscal 2010, with 

operating income of ¥17.4 billion, an increase of 5.4%. 

Consumer Products As a company with a focus on continual development, Kobayashi 
Pharmaceutical separates its products into seven core categories.

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical provides medical devices to the healthcare industry 
as both a manufacturer and a trading company. 
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Consumer Products 

First, the markets initially created 

by Kobayashi Pharmaceutical 

expand with the entrance of 

various competitors. 

In response to this we expand 

our existing product lineup by 

releasing a new novel product(s) 

that outperforms competitors’ 

offerings and helps to further 

expand demand.

First, we discover a niche located 

between two market segments 

where we see a clear latent need.

Next, we go about developing 

a new market by releasing a 

novel product designed to spur 

demand and transform the dreams 

of our customers into reality. 

Generating New Markets 

Expanding Markets 

To increase market share and 

revitalize mature markets we 

introduce products that are 

diverse and offer value-added 

features, helping to expand and 

strengthen the brand.

Business Model
Strategies for carving out niche markets 

and achieving top market share
“Enter small and grow big;

Become a big fish in a small pond”
“Intelligible Marketing”

“As long as there are consumers, there 
will always be countless niche markets .”

Market Maturity and Revitalization 

Our business model in the consumer products segments begins with making the dreams of our customers a reality 

by cultivating new markets while expanding into existing markets by differentiating our offerings from those of our 

competitors. This represents the key to our ability to retain a commanding market share and high profits.

Market C 

(old market)

Market A 

(old market)

Market D 

(old market)

Market B 

(old market)

Competitor 
product 

Competitor 
product 

Competitor 
product 

Competitor 
product 

Competitor 
product 

Competitor 
product 

Market launch

Market launch

Market launch

Market launch

100%
Share 

New
Market

The Secret to Commanding Market Share and High Profits

Share of Core Brand Products (Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Research) 

Eye Wash

Eyebon Breath Care

New products that expanded 
and strengthened the brand

1969 Bluelet

Novel concept
product

Enhance convenience
and user experience

Expand
the selection

Further improve
the brand’s lineup

A novel deodorizer and cleanser hung 
from the tank of a flush-toilet. We 
released Bluelet in anticipation of future 
demand during a time when less than 
30% of Japanese households had a 
flush toilet. The novelty of this product’s 
pleasant fragrance and blue colored 
water helped it to garner much attention. 

1986 Bluelet Okudake 
In order to eliminate the hassle of removing 
the toilet tank lid to hang the Bluelet, we 
launched a novel product featuring the same 
cleaning capabilities but in a package that 
can simply be placed in the sink of the toilet 
tank lid (a toilet design unique to Japan). 
Bluelet Okudake instantly became an 
essential item in every Japanese household.

1991 Bluelet Dobon 
Amid growing diversification in toilet 
function and performance, Kobayashi 
Pharmaceutical developed Bluelet Dobon, 
a new addition to the successful Bluelet 
franchise placed inside the toilet tank. 
A colorless cleaner type was also added to 
the lineup to broaden the range of products 
on offer to customers. 

2001
Liquid Bluelet Okudake 

58.5%

Oral Breath Freshener Cooling Gel Sheets for Forehead Deodorizing Air Fresheners

We developed a novel liquid-type Bluelet 
that cleans more effectively and with 
more foaming action. The product lineup 
was then expanded to include Bluelets 
featuring bleach cleaning power as well 
as Bluelets that come in a variety of 
different exciting fragrances, enabling 
consumers to customize their bathroom 
environment to their liking. 

76.4% 58.6% 30.2%

Netsusama Sheet Shoshugen for the Toilet 
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New Products Posting Strong Sales Existing Products Posting Strong Sales 

Deflation and stagnant consumer spending as a result of economic 

uncertainty in Japan has spurred comparison shopping where 

consumers select only what they need based on careful selection.

For the consumer goods market, this has meant that unique 

products no longer guarantee sales, indicating a tougher operating 

environment for Kobayashi Pharmaceutical’s current approach to its 

customer focus.

Given these conditions, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical worked to cultivate 

new markets by launching 12 high value-added products and enhancing 

its existing mainstay brands that form the pillar of corporate earnings. 

As a result, segment net sales for the fiscal year under review ended in 

March 2010 totaled ¥51.2 billion, up 2.5% on a year-over-year basis. 

Viewed by category, deodorizing air freshener net sales were ¥30.6 

billion yen, up 0.7%. Sales of Bluelet, our toilet cleanser and air freshener, 

which marked its 40th anniversary, rose 3.1% to ¥13.3 billion thanks to a 

more aggressive sales strategy, while sales of Shoshugen, our deodorizing 

air freshener and another earnings pillar, were up 0.4% to ¥11 billion. In 

addition to these existing mainstay brands contributing greatly to earnings, 

sales of the new product Sekai Koro also grew steadily.

Sales of sanitary products reached ¥15.8 billion, as the global 

influenza pandemic boosted sales of illness prevention products, such 

as Nodo nu-ru nure masuku. 

Sales of household sundries were up 13.3% to ¥4.8 billion, 

buoyed by strong performance from new products Chinshite Kongari 
Sakanayaki Pack and toilet cleanser Toilet Senjo-chu Sabotta Ring, 

which captured customer demand nicely. 

Chinshite Kongari Sakanayaki Pack 

Chinshite Kongari Sakanayaki Pack is an 

easy-to-prepare package of filleted fish that is 

cooked to a golden brown in the microwave. 

The product has been a huge hit among singles 

for its no-hassle preparation and easy cleanup. 

Sekai Koro is a new type of deodorizing air 

freshener for the room that employs exotic plant 

fragrances from around the world and enables 

people to enjoy the natural freshness of air from 

different parts of the world. 

Liquid-Type Bluelet Okudake Shoshugen for the Room 

Liquid-Type Bluelet Okudake is a deodorizing 

cleanser for flush toilets that is placed in the toilet 

tank lid sink. It produces a strong foaming action 

to thoroughly cleanse the toilet bowl and tank 

after each flush. The product comes in a wide 

range of fragrances. 

Shoshugen for the Room is a deodorizing air 

freshener that uses a large paper filter to absorb and 

powerfully eliminate annoying odors. The product 

features a paper filter that can be adjusted to 

customize the degree of odor absorption and 

deodorizing action, and comes in a variety of 

fragrances. 

The Toilet Pikapika sales promotion in support of elementary schools ran from 
June to July 2010. A portion of the proceeds from the sale of toilet related 
products was donated to elementary schools for bathroom refurbishments

Our Customer Focused Resolve is being Tested

Market Trends

New High Value-added Products Capture 
Customer Demand

Review of the Fiscal Year Ended March 2010 

Marketing New Lifestyles using New Products 
with Focus on Deodorizing Air Fresheners 

Outlook for the Fiscal Year Ending March 2011

New product development represents the key source of growth in the 

Household  segment. As such, moving forward Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical will continue to develop and strategically bring products 

to market that generate new consumer lifestyle patterns. In addition, we 

will also continue to expand our product lineup and conduct sales 

promotions for existing products. Specifically, we will focus on the 

category of deodorizing air fresheners. As part of this focus, in April 

2010, we created the Fragrance Development Group, a specialized 

internal organization for fragrance research that will enable us to speed 

up the development and marketing of high quality fragrances tailored to 

changing lifestyle patterns. 

Based on these initiatives, we expect to record segment net sales 

for the following fiscal year ending in March 2011 of ¥52 billion, up 1.4% 

on a year-on-year basis.

Sekai Koro 

KOBAYASHI Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.    Annual Report 201013

Household Division 
Deodorizing Air Fresheners, Sanitary Products and Household Sundries

Continue Developing High Value-added New Products 
while Expanding Existing Brand Product Lines

Household Division Net Sales
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Health Care Division
Pharmaceutical, Oral Hygiene and Food Products

Product Development and Information Provision 
Supporting Healthcare Needs and Health Advancement

New Products Posting Strong Sales 

With the shift in consumer needs from the prevention and treatment of 

disease to enjoying a healthier quality of life, demand for products for lifestyle 

diseases and anti-aging is expected to grow in the future. In order to capture 

this demand, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical will focus development activities 

on new products that support health advancement in a variety of areas, 

including oral hygiene, food and of course our mainstay pharmaceuticals.

In addition to this, there will be a greater need to enhance the quality and 

nature of information provided to customers moving forward. Starting in April 2010, 

we established dedicated merchandising booths staffed with specially trained 

pharmaceutical and cosmetic product salespersons at our retail partner stores.  

By building upon these initiatives, we expect to achieve segment 

net sales of ¥42.9 billion, up 2.4% on a year-over-year basis, for the 

current fiscal year ending in March 2011. 

Existing Products Posting Strong Sales 

Health Care Division Net Sales 
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The completely overhauled Pharmaceutical Affairs Act enacted in 

June 2009 greatly transformed the OTC pharmaceuticals1 market in 

Japan by expanding sales channels through the launch of a 

registered sales person system. 

In addition, we expect the healthcare market, our key strategic 

focus area, to grow further in the future, underpinned by a boost in 

consumer awareness of self-medication solutions based on expanding 

healthcare needs and an aging population. Given these changes in the 

market environment and consumer awareness, Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical believes that it is more important than ever to be a key 

provider of not only products, but information as well.

The Health Care Division of Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical focused on new product 

development to generate additional value 

in the healthcare field and meet increasing 

consumer needs. As a result, segment net 

sales for the fiscal year under review 

totaled ¥41.8 billion, up 4.5% on a 

year-over-year basis. In fiscal 2010, we 

launched two new products, Visrrat Gold a, 
a Chinese herbal medication (called Kampo 

in Japanese) that burns excessive fat 

deposits by increasing lipid metabolism, 

1 OTC Pharmaceuticals: Over the Counter Pharmaceuticals. Refers to pharmaceuticals that 
   can be purchased at a pharmacy or drug store without a prescription from a physician. 

Visrrat Gold a Komure Care 

Visrrat Gold a is an OTC drug for obesity that 

burns excess lipid deposits. The herbal 

formula consists of dried extracts from eight 

kinds of natural medicines in an easy to take 

capsule form.

Komure Care is a Kampo Chinese herbal 

medicine that alleviates muscle cramps of 

the leg and associated pain and stiffness 

using a peony and licorice decoction herbal 

drug formula. 

Breath Care Shouyou a

Breath Care is an oral breath freshener that 

helps to eliminate bad breath often 

associated with things such as eating garlic 

or drinking alcohol.

Shouyou a is a medicated toothpaste 

containing five types of completely natural 

plant extracts that help prevent gingivitis and 

periodontitis. 

Expansion of Sales Channels for OTC Pharmaceuticals 
and Consumer Awareness of Self-Medication Solutions 

Market Trends 

Growth Seen in Pharmaceutical Product Market 
Centered on Herbal Medicines 

Review of the Fiscal Year Ended March 2010 
Focus on Product Development and Information 
Provision in Support of Health Advancement 

Outlook for the Fiscal Year Ending March 2011

Kampo Chinese herbal medicine product

and Komure Care, another type of Kampo Chinese herbal medication that 

relieves muscle pain and stiffness of the leg. Notably, Visrrat Gold a posted sales 

of ¥1.8 billion, contributing greatly to the growth of the pharmaceutical product 

category and the market for obesity OTC pharmaceutical products.

Viewed by category, pharmaceuticals saw sales of ¥21.5 billion yen, 

up 2.1% year on year, while total sales for our seven Kampo medicines sold 

nationwide totaled ¥8 billion, a 22% increase over the previous fiscal year, 

which can be attributed to our focus on herbal drug products through our 

internal Kampo Chinese Herbal Medicine Project.

Existing mainstay brands Shouyou a, a medicated toothpaste that 

helps prevent periodontitis, and Breath Care, 

an oral breath freshener, acted as key drivers 

for oral hygiene product sales, with net sales 

up 8.2% to ¥14.6 billion, while food product 

sales totaled ¥5.6 billion, up 4.5%, as both 

segments continue to show steady growth. 

Market Trend of Obesity 
Alleviating Drugs
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(Kobayashi Pharmaceutical research. Fiscal year data 
covers the cumulative total from April to March. Market 
definition based on Kobayashi Pharmaceutical definition.)
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Actively Investing in Advertising and Customer 
Follow-up to Respond to Intensifying Competition 
and Enhance Earnings Performance 

Mail Order Market Size 

Mail Order Market Expanding but Experiencing 
Greater Competition due to Influx of New Competitors  

Market Trends

Building a Solid Foundation for Sales Growth by 
Exploring New Advertising Media Channels and 
Consolidating the Cosmetics Business

Outlook for the Fiscal Year Ending March 2011

Mail-order Business Net Sales 
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Source: Mail-order sales revenue study conducted by the Japan Direct Marketing Association 
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The mail-order market in Japan has expanded gradually over the past 

few years, with competition heating up largely due to an influx of new 

competitors from various unrelated sectors in addition to the traditional 

mail order business operators and retail industry providers.

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical was one of the first companies in its 

sector to enter the mail order business some 11 years ago, and has 

since worked to expand its mail-order operations and acquire 

proprietary expertise in the sector. 

Expanded Customer Base by 480,000 and  
Posted Highest Ever Sales Volume through 
Effective Advertising and Follow-up Activities

Net sales from the mail-order segment for the term ended March 2010 

rose a robust 16% year-over-year to total ¥8.8 billion, representing the 

highest sales volume to date. 

The key factor for this strong sales growth was our acquisition of 

an additional 250,000 customers underpinned by proactive and 

effective advertising spending that leveraged the unique qualities of 

each media channel.

Review of the Fiscal Year Ended March 2010 

We also conducted proprietary follow-up activities that capitalized on

the unique nature of our customer focus strategy targeting our 480,000 mail 

order members1, which represents the combined total of our 230 

thousand existing customers with the newly acquired customers in fiscal 2010. 

Viewed by product, we were able to grow the Glucosamine & Collagen 

Set, a supplement for middle to older age consumers, into a mainstay 

product by boosting sales 250% compared to the previous year. In addition, 

sales of cosmetic Hifmid and health food EDICARE each rose by 20%, with 

both officially becoming hit products as sales exceeded one billion yen each. 

Furthermore, new release Aloe Hair Tonic, a medicated hair-restorer, 

also posted steady growth and we expect it to become one of our next 

mainstay products going forward. 

We expect to establish a stronger operating presence in the mail order 

segment for the fiscal year ending March 2011 by growing segment net 

sales by 15.5% year over year to ¥10.2 billion. 

In order to do so, however, we must acquire a greater number of new 

customers by actively exploring new modes of TV and Internet advertising to 

complement conventional newspaper ads. 

In addition, we will consolidate customer information for Hifmid and 

Real Labo, which had previously been managed independently, in order to 

grow and streamline our cosmetics business and to pursue cross-selling 

opportunities for both products. At the same time we will enhance the 

content of informational magazine Tokutoku 

together with our direct mailing activities. 

We will also actively engage in new product 

development and in the exploration of new 

business segments in order to establish a 

foundation for long-term sustainable growth, as 

we expect the mail order business to be a key 

growth driver. This is certainly a business to 

watch carefully in the future.

Tokutoku (an informational 
magazine) and other direct mail 
distributed to members

Specialist consulting staff, including pharmacists, 
supplement advisers and nutritionists, respond to 
each customer’s individual inquiry

Hifmid Series—a cosmetic series featuring all 
natural ceramid II compound

Real Labo—a drug delivery system inspired 
cosmetic series where ingredients are delivered 
on demand to problem areas

Glucosamine & 
Collagen provides 
the entire 
daily-recommended 
intake of 1760mg of 
glucosamine 

1 Mail-order member: customers whose name and address are registered with Kobayashi Pharmaceutical.

3,880

Mail Order Division

Consumer Products

Business Overview 

KOBAYASHI Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.    Annual Report 201015



International Business 

Strengthening Investments to Capitalize 
on Growth in the China Market Expanding Sales of 
Healthcare Products and Body Warmers

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical has conventionally positioned body 

warming pads as a key strategic product globally, centered on the 

United States, United Kingdom and China. 

In the United States, we have actively marketed our products by 

1616

Delivering Japan-based Innovative Products 
and Solutions to the World

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical’s Overseas Business Operations 

For the following fiscal year ending in March 2011, we will promote 

initiatives to expand body warmer sales and launch healthcare 

products overseas. 

As the largest market in the world, China will become the target area 

of focus, as we plan to strengthen partnerships with local distributors and 

expand the sales area of our Nuan Bao Bao body warming pads further. In 

addition, we will review the launch of OTC pharmaceuticals in China and 

other countries as well. Our goal is to provide Japan-based innovative 

products and solutions that contribute to the betterment of the health and 

lifestyles of people around the world. 

Through ongoing investments over the following fiscal year, we aim to 

achieve a 9.1% increase in net overseas sales to ¥7.2 billion, which would 

mark the first time the overseas business segment has been profitable.

Focus on the Growth Market of China Aiming to 
Expand Sales Area and Pharmaceutical Sales 

Outlook for the Fiscal Year Ending March 2011

Robust Sales Growth of Body Warmers in China 

Review of the Fiscal Year Ended March 2010 

International Business Net Sales 

2010

(¥ Billion) 

9

6

3

0
2008

6.2

2009

6.5

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical launched the global expansion of its operations 

during the 1970s. While our overseas business began modestly with the 

export of products to Southeast Asia, today, the business has grown into a 

core pillar of our growth strategy with operations conducted through locally 

incorporated subsidiaries in the United States, the United Kingdom, China, 

Singapore and Hong Kong. The export business continues to occupy 

an important part of our operations as we currently sell Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical branded products to 25 countries around the world. 

In addition to our mainstay body warmer products that account 

for over 60% of segment sales, our overseas business also includes 

deodorizing air fresheners, pharmaceuticals and sanitary products, 

including cold gel sheets for the forehead. 

Sales demo at a hypermarket in Shanghai, China

leveraging the sales channel of HeatMax, which became a wholly 

owned subsidiary in 2006. A warmer than expected winter during the 

fiscal year under review had a moderate effect on body warmer sales, 

but sales of cooling gel sheet BE KOOOL were robust. 

Sales of mainstay products KOOL’ n’ SOOTHE, a cool gel sheet, and 

Cura-Heat, a body warming pad, in the United Kingdom were on par with 

the previous fiscal year, but we were able to expand sales on the back 

of an increase in exports to other parts of Europe, including Germany. 

In China, our body warmer Nuan Bao Bao saw a significant increase 

in sales volume, which was primarily attributed to the expansion of sales 

areas to capitalize on the country’s rapid economic growth. 

As for Southeast Asia, where future market growth is anticipated, 

we established a new locally incorporated subsidiary in Singapore and 

launched business operations in April 2009. 

In the export business, we have expanded sales to Russia, Australia, 

South Korea and Taiwan by providing products tailored to local needs. 

Net overseas sales for the fiscal year under review were flat due to the 

appreciation of the yen against major foreign currencies. If not for the effect 

of currency fluctuations, there would have been an 8% increase compared 

with the previous year.

6.6

United States

United Kingdom

Hong Kong 

Singapore 

China

Products Developed and Sold through Locally Incorporated 
Subsidiaries (4 countries; 1 region) 

HeatMax’s HOT HANDS body warmer 
available in the U.S.

Nuan Bao Bao body warmer available in China
Our research shows that public brand recognition 
stands at more than 90% in Shanghai.
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Medical Devices Business
Having established competitive market advantages in specialist areas, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical contributes to 

the betterment of patients and the front lines of medicine by providing sound medical devices that are safe, 

secure and reliable. 

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical’s medical devices business operates 

under three companies: Kobayashi Medical Co., Ltd., Medicon, Inc. 

and eVent Medical, Inc. 

Kobayashi Medical sources advanced medical devices from 

outside Japan and provides them to university hospitals and major 

regional general hospitals in Japan. The company also engages in 

proprietary development activities to meet the unique localized needs 

of the Japan market, marketing products under the Kobamed brand.

Medicon, Inc., established together through a joint investment with 

C.R. Bard, Inc. of the United States in 1972, imports and markets 

advanced medical devices in the areas of urology and gastroenterology 

manufactured by C.R. Bard. Our subsidiary, eVent Medical, acquired in 

2006, maintains sales channels in numerous countries around the world 

and engages in the development, manufacture and sale of highly reliable 

ventilator products primarily in the United States, Europe and Asia. 

Net sales of the medical devices business for the current fiscal 

year under review ended in March 2010 totaled ¥12.1 billion1, up 

6.9% on a year-over-year basis. In addition, the ¥500 million yen 

operating loss from fiscal year ended March 2009 was transformed 

into a ¥100 million yen operating profit for the current term thanks to 

effective cost-cutting measures.  

Net sales and operating income for the following fiscal year ending 

in March 2011 are expected to rise by 4.9% to ¥12.7 billion and 8.7% to 

¥300 million respectively, as we move forward with the further focus and 

specialization of our operations and the enhancement of sales structures 

and proprietary development activities.

Business Fields 

Changes in Medical Devices Business

1972
Nihon Medico, Co., Ltd. 
established 

1976
Changes name to 
Medicon, Inc. after 
change in investment 
ratio of C.R. Bard, Inc.

1990
Acquires the three 
companies of Shield 
Healthcare Centers

1992
Establishes Kobayashi 
Medical Division

2006
Divests three companies 
of Shield Healthcare 
Centers

Acquires eVent Medical, Inc.

2010
Spins off Kobayashi 
Medical Division

eVent Medical, Inc.
Development and sale 

of ventilators

Medicon, Inc.
Import and sale of medical devices 

manufactured by C.R. Bard Inc.

Investment Investment 50% Investment

Investment

Acquired

Kobayashi
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Kobayashi Medical Co., Ltd.
Import and marketing of 

medical devices not in direct 
competition with Medicon, Inc.

Kobayashi Medical 
Division

Three companies of 
Shield Healthcare Centers

Nihon Medico Co., Ltd. Medicon, Inc.

C.R. Bard, Inc.JMF C.R. Bard, Inc.

Urology 
Anesthesiology 

Neurosurgery
Otolaryngology 

Respiratory and 
Anesthesiology

(Pain Clinic)

Orthopedics 

Surgery
Operating rooms

Gastroenterology 
Gastroenterological 
Surgery Orthopedics 

Radiology 
Vascular surgery 

eVent 
Medical, Inc.

Kobayashi 
Medical Co., Ltd. 

Medicon, Inc.
(Equity-method affiliate)

Ventilators

Business Overview 

Orthopedics,
Surgery and 
operating rooms,
Pulmonology and 
anesthesiology,
Neurosurgery and 
otolaryngology

Urology, Gastroenterology, 
Gastroenterological medicine, 
Surgery, Vascular surgery, 
Cardiovascular internal medicine, 
Anesthesiology, Radiology, etc.

Ventilators

1 As it is an equity-method affiliate, net sales from Medicon are not included in medical devices 
business earnings. 

Divested
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Kobayashi Medical Co., Ltd. 
Formerly Kobayashi Medical Division 

Moving Forward with a Focus on Core Competencies,
Aiming to Enhance Corporate Competitiveness 

Kobayashi Medical Net Sales 

2010

(¥ Billion) 

12

8

4

0
2008

8.8

2009

9.5

eVent Medical Initiatives 

Global Marketing of Ventilator Products Focused on Emerging Nations 

eVent Medical, Inc., founded in the year 2000, became a member of the Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical Group in 2006. Today, the company develops, manufactures and markets 

ventilator products globally, under the concepts of reliability and ease of use for healthcare 

professionals, and has established sales channels and a proven track record in numerous 

countries around the world.

For the current fiscal year under review, net sales of eVent Medical totaled ¥1 billion, up 

32.9% on a year-over-year basis, amid strong sales growth in emerging nations, particularly 

in South America. In addition, the company continues to proactively engage in the 

development of new cost effective and innovative products and plans to expand sales 

primarily in emerging nations going forward. 

Touch panel screen 

InfantLS

Inspiration

(Ventilator) 

Kobayashi Medical is Making the Dreams of the Medical Field a Reality 
Today, there is a growing need to improve the quality of life for patients in 

hospitals and other medical care institutions. As such, Kobayashi 

Medical acts as a provider of innovative new products from Japan and 

overseas and engages in the proprietary development, manufacture and 

sale of new products tailored to the needs of Japan’s medical devices 

market. For the current fiscal year, Kobayashi Medical developed 15% of 

its product offerings in house. Moving forward, the company plans to 

increase this percentage to 25%, as it seeks to transform itself into a 

specialized medical devices manufacturer. 

10.1

Japan’s Aging Society Drives Market Growth 
for Medical Devices

Market Trends 

Accelerated Focus Strategy in Areas of Specialization 

While continuing to concentrate on its core competencies, Kobayashi 

Medical, will seek to strengthen localized sales competencies and drive 

reform initiatives to establish a higher profit, more efficient operating 

structure in the coming year. Based on these initiatives, Kobayashi 

Medical expects to realize ¥10.2 billion in net sales for the following 

fiscal year ending in March 2011, up 1.0% on a year-over-year basis, 

and operating income of ¥600 million yen, up 15.9%. 

Outlook for the Fiscal Year Ending March 2011

Achieved Profits through a Focused Strategy 
and Cost Cutting Spun Off Kobayashi Medical 
in April 2010 

Review of the Fiscal Year Ending March 2010

In the fiscal year ended March 2010, Japan’s medical devices sector 

witnessed never before seen changes take place amid the change in 

government administrations and shift in policy stance toward medicine, 

including a net positive revision to the medical repayment standard for 

the first time in 10 years. The market has also undergone change in a 

variety of other ways, including greater demand for medical costs to be 

reigned in through discounting, an overconcentration of surgeries at major 

regional general hospitals with diagnosis procedure combination (DPC) 

payment systems, intensifying competition among competitor companies, 

and greater care by patients in selecting medical care facilities. 

Despite this challenging environment, the medical and healthcare 

industry is expected to grow, underpinned by the acceleration of 

Japan’s aging society, with medical devices seen as a segment with 

large growth potential going forward.

The keys to responding flexibly to this operating environment include 

establishing a greater degree of specialization, productivity and operating 

efficiencies. With this in mind, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical spun off its 

operating division Kobayashi Medical Division into Kobayashi Medical 

Co., Ltd. on April 1, 2010. 

Kobayashi Medical, primarily focused on the fields of orthopedics, 

surgery and operating rooms and pulmonology, moved forward with cost 

reduction measures and a renewed focus on its core competencies by 

refining branded products targeting these fields in order to gain greater 

market share and enhance brand visibility. As a result, net sales of 

Kobayashi Medical for the fiscal year under review rose 6.9% to ¥10.1 

billion, while operating income was up 178.6% to ¥500 million. 

Acumed

Acu-Loc
Distal Radius plate 
system 

Kobayashi Medical 
Co., Ltd.

Kobamed ACROFIX 

Compression hip 
screw system 

CONMED Corporation

System 5000™
Electrical scalpel

Parker Medical, Inc.

Parker Flex-Tip™ 
Tracheal tube
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Corporate Governance Organization

Maximizing Corporate Value by Building 
Stakeholder Confidence

Corporate Governance 

The maximization of corporate value is a fundamental 

management policy of the Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group. 

In executing this policy, we are committed to earning the trust 

of our stakeholders, shareholders and the investment community 

by ensuring transparent management practices implemented 

through the appropriate corporate governance structures. 

Reflecting the Voices of Employees and 
External Stakeholders in Management 

As a supporting arm to the board of directors, the Advisory Board, 

consisting of external stakeholders, outside directors, the Chairman, 

President and relevant directors, meets half yearly. External stakeholders 

provide guidance from an outside perspective on significant business 

issues and management policy, which is in turn reflected in the daily 

management practices of the Company. 

In addition, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical has established an Internal 

Control Committee, consisting of principal directors and external lawyers, 

which deliberates primarily on basic issues relating to the development 

of internal control systems and compliance issues. The committee also 

engages in the monitoring of the internal control system and the 

formulation of basic policy relating to internal controls. 

Furthermore, we actively provide opportunities referred to internally 

as “LA & LA” (Looking Around & Listening Around) for employees to 

convey their views and opinions directly to management to fulfill our 

commitment to developing an organizational climate in which all 

employees can openly share their opinion. Kobayashi Pharmaceutical 

believes this culture is a significant part of corporate governance. 

Establishing a Framework for Corporate Governance

Audit

Audit

Advice

Advice

Advice

Audit

Audit
Audit

Independent 
Auditors

Lawyers and 

Other Outside  

Specialists 

Independent Auditors

Operating Divisions, etc. 

Shareholders’ Meeting

The Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group has adopted an executive officer 

system to separate management from operations, and has established 

a Group Officers Meeting (GOM), consisting primarily of executive officers 

that meet twice monthly to review significant matters relating to business 

operations. 

In addition, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical has appointed two outside 

auditors to complement its existing four-member board of corporate 

auditors to ensure management transparency. Statutory auditors attend 

principal meetings, have access to required records, and conduct interviews 

of operating divisions in order to monitor management to identify business 

risk as early as possible. Furthermore, outside auditors do not maintain 

a business or capital relationship with the company. 

The board of directors, consisting of eight directors, including one 

outside director, meets monthly at regular board meetings and holds 

extraordinary board meetings, when required, to monitor the progress of 

all operational activities, which includes making significant decisions 

regarding business and operational matters, determining matters 

stipulated under the governing laws and regulations, and reviewing GOM 

deliberations. Director as well as the four corporate auditors, including the 

two outside auditors, attend board meetings. Auditors participate in 

discussions, providing an external perspective on operations and ensuring 

that Kobayashi Pharmaceutical’s internal system of checks and balances 

is operating sufficiently and effectively. 

Appointing Outside Directors and Outside  
Auditors to Separate Management 
from Operations

Ensuring Management Transparency 

Pursuing Timely and Easy-to-Understand Disclosure

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical strives to provide timely disclosure of 

corporate data and information in order for shareholders and the 

investment community to form an accurate assessment of the company. 

Our corporate website is also extensively used to disseminate the latest 

information through news release feeds, easy to follow commentary on 

business strategy and product lineups, and the timely disclosure of 

important information related to financial filings. We also disclose 

corporate information in an easy to understand manner at presentations 

for retail investors hosted nationwide. 

Furthermore, the Bluebird Report, which is distributed to retail 

investors immediately following the general shareholders’ meeting, 

summarizes our business operations and various business activities, 

indicating our commitment to disclose effective and useful information. 

Disclosing Information to Shareholders and the 
Investment Community

Compensation Advisory Committee 

Advisory Board
(External Stakeholders and Outside Directors)

Internal Control Committee
(Participation from External Lawyers)

Board of Corporate Auditors
Board of Directors

Group Officers Meeting
Executive Officers
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Ongoing Execution and Auditing of Action Plan

In the autumn of 2007, the Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group studied 

both latent risks as well as evident risks facing each department. The 

results of this study were used to sort Group business risks into 13 

categories, with an action plan established to address each set of risks. 

Under this framework, the various risks as well as the action plan are 

regularly re-evaluated to ensure that effective countermeasures can be 

implemented against business risk at any time.   

In April 2008, we enacted the Business Risk Management Rules, 

which stipulate methods for consolidating and handling risk information. 

In addition, information on risk is also shared with independent auditors, 

while external lawyers and other outside specialists provide advice on 

risk management practices and structures, enabling us to respond 

properly to a variety of business risks. 

Researching and Managing Business Risk 

A group-training program led by a certified public accountant was 

provided for executive officers, where participants came together to 

review actual Group challenges and progress, and discuss the future 

direction of the three-year-old internal control system. 

Group-training programs were also offered for newly appointed 

managers and new employees. The goal of these programs is to educate 

our employees about corporate ethics and the relevant laws and 

regulations to enhance compliance awareness and prevent possible 

compliance violations in daily work processes. 

In addition, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical began compliance testing using 

the Company’s intranet. Moving forward, we aim to further promote compliance 

best practices throughout the Group by combining these ongoing tests with 

compliance related articles that appear regularly in the Group Newsletter. 

Pursuing Group-Wide Best Practices 
in Compliance, Operational Efficiencies and 
Financial Reporting 

In April 2003, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical established its Compliance 

Committee as an organization under the direct control of the board of 

directors that ensures Group-wide compliance with laws and regulations. 

Following this, in September 2003, we created and enacted our Basic 

Policy on Corporate Behavior and the Executive Officer and Employee Code 

of Conduct to improve corporate ethics and compliance awareness.

Starting in 2006, we launched the Basic Policy for Internal Control 

System in order to ensure appropriate work processes required by the 

Companies Act and other laws and regulations. As a result, we have 

established the necessary framework for internal controls, including a 

review process for internal rules and regulations and the re-evaluation 

of business and operational risk. In 2007, the Compliance Committee was 

renamed the Internal Control Committee, and its scope of responsibility 

was expanded to include the review of the effectiveness of internal 

controls, including its role in ensuring that financial reporting complies 

with the Financial Instrument and Exchange Act of Japan. 

The Internal Control Committee is run under the leadership of the 

President, who acts as chairperson, and consists of the four lower 

organizations of the Committee on the Protection of Personal Information, 

the Group Health and Safety Committee, the Pharmaceutical Subcommittee 

and the Labor Subcommittee. The committee, supported by external 

lawyer advisors, monitors Group-wide operations and has developed 

the framework to give advice and recommendations to each organization. 

In the fiscal year ended March 2010, the committee identified 

issues relating to Group-wide compliance in the fields of personal 

information protection, health and safety, pharmaceuticals and labor, 

and developed appropriate measures to deal with each issue. 

Internal Control Committee

Responding to Reports from Group Employees
and Business Partner Employees  

The Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group established 

an Employee Consulting Center in January 2003 

both internally and externally in a law office as a 

special telephone hotline for employees to 

anonymously report compliance violations or ask 

general questions on compliance issues. In April 

2006, the hotline’s scope was expanded to 

include retired employees and employees of 

business partners, while a second external law 

office was brought in to assist.

The telephone hotline is operated in full 

compliance with the Whistleblower Protection Act. 

Whistleblower Hotline (Employee Consulting Center)

Conducting Educational Programs Tailored to 
Employee Role

Over the years, Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical has conducted 

various compliance education 

programs for both employees and 

executive officers tailored to role 

and job title. These programs were 

also offered in the fiscal year ended 

March 2010. 

Compliance Education

Poster for the Employee 
Consulting Center

Compliance articles 
appearing in the Group Newsletter

The Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group is actively building 

internal frameworks to adhere to relevant laws and 

regulations, such as ensuring that appropriate financial 

statements are prepared and that operations comply with 

stipulations of the Companies Act and Financial Instrument 

and Exchange Act of Japan. In addition, we conduct a variety 

of educational training programs to ensure that all executive 

officers and employees comply with laws and regulations as 

well as follow a strict code of corporate conduct and ethics. 

Establishing a Compliance Framework and 
Internal Control System 

Business management requires the identification and 

mitigation of, as well as countermeasures against potential 

risks. As such, the Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group has 

categorized principal business risks into 13 categories and 

established an action plan to address these risks, with the 

execution of this action plan, in turn, being audited.  

Establishing a Framework for Risk Management
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Corporate Governance 

Quality Assurance Framework for the Consumer Products Segment

The Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group believes that the key 

driver in maximizing corporate value is a clear approach to 

building a customer-orientated organization. As such, our 

CSR initiatives focus primarily on maintaining and enhancing 

quality. We also firmly believe that the essence of corporate 

governance can be found in fulfilling our responsibilities as a 

corporate citizen not only by serving our shareholders and 

the investment community, but by recognizing the needs of 

all concerned stakeholders including our business partners, 

employees and local communities. 

Reviewing the Need for, and Relevance of, 
Animal Testing 

In addition to its other product-related committees, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical 

has established an Animal Testing Committee to review the potential 

existence of scientific or ethical concerns surrounding the need or 

relevance of animal testing.  

Starting in 2004, we have 

actively pursued a policy to minimize 

animal suffering, reduce the number of 

animals used in testing and find 

alternative forms of testing that do not 

use animals. Our efforts have resulted in 

far more humane treatment of animals. 

For example, today we incorporate 

three-dimensional dermal models in skin 

irritation testing and corneal cells for eye 

irritation testing. 

are conducted at each stage of the product design process. These 

meetings provide an opportunity to evaluate performance as well as 

allowing for a review of product naming, package design development, 

container design and cost estimation. 

The Labeling Review Meeting is tasked with ensuring that the 

company complies with any relevant packaging and labeling laws, while 

the Performance Review Meeting looks specifically at each product to 

ensure that any claims made about its purpose and efficacy, any testing 

it underwent, etc., can be verified. These internal meetings allow us to 

move forward with product development more quickly and prudently by 

verifying each process from a customer-centric viewpoint. 

Product safety and usability are also important aspects of the 

evaluation process for each product. The Safety Testing Review Meeting 

evaluates product safety and determines the appropriate evaluation criteria 

and methodology, while the Clinical Trial 

Review Committee reviews clinical trial 

plans with impartiality from both the 

scientific and ethical standpoints, 

adhering to a set of ethical principles 

dealing with human experimentation 

set forth by the Declaration of Helsinki. 

Pursuing a Customer-centric Approach to Quality 
Control Best Practices 

The foundation of new organic growth for the Kobayashi Pharmaceutical 

Group rests with new product development. The most important aspect 

of product development is ensuring the highest possible standards of 

safety and quality. 

All of our employees are deeply aware that quality is the lifeblood 

of our company, and as such, strive to consistently maintain and 

enhance quality from the development, production ramp-up, and mass 

production stages through to the sales and follow-up stages. 

Society and our customers in general expect continually higher 

levels of quality each year. Therefore, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical is 

committed to constantly improving its quality assurance framework on a 

daily basis, and will not rest on its laurels.  

Product Design
The Importance of Verifying the Function, 
Effect and Suitability of Labeling

A problem in product design will inevitably lead to problems during later 

stages of the production cycle. Consequently, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical 

focuses particular attention on quality control in the development phase. 

The Labeling Review Meeting and Performance Review Meeting 

Maintaining and Enhancing Quality in the Consumer Products Segment 

CSR Initiatives 

Animal Testing

Alternative

Labeling Review Meeting

Three-dimensional 
dermal model 

Corneal cells

Development Theme Stage Development Stage (Product Design)
Production 
Ramp-up Stage

Mass Production 
Stage 

Sales and 
Follow-up Stage
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Labeling Consideration Meeting

Labeling Review Meeting

Design Review Meeting

Performance Review Meeting

Anti-Corrosion Design Review Meeting

Safety Testing Review Meeting

Clinical Trial Review Committee

Animal Testing Committee 

Food Ingredient Safety Review Meeting 

Quality Assurance Department

Monitoring MonitoringMonitoring
Monitoring and 
feedback
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Providing High-Quality Products and Information 
to Healthcare Practitioners in the Field

Kobayashi Medical Company has established a quality assurance 

framework based on its ISO 13485 certification in medical device quality 

assurance. In addition, Kobayashi Medical focuses equally on the quality 

of products, after-sales services and communications with healthcare 

professionals, with particular attention paid to providing those in the 

field with the most up-to-date information. 

For example, the company has offered an Electric Scalpel Safety 

Seminar in various places since 1999 in which university professors and 

clinical engineering technicians give lectures to healthcare professionals 

on how to use electrical scalpels during surgery.  

In addition, the company launched an educational program in 

November 2004 for physicians to learn about the latest technologies 

and techniques in medicine. The program was started as a viable solution 

to address the lack of opportunities in the field for physicians to learn 

about the many new and innovative medical devices available, despite 

the rapid innovation taking place. The program offers a four-step course 

to arthroscopic shoulder surgery, starting from the fundamentals and 

leading up to an actual operation performed under the supervision of 

a qualified physician. This has allowed the company to contribute 

greatly to increasing the number of physicians able to perform such 

surgeries in Japan. 

Maintaining and Enhancing Quality in the Medical Devices Segment 

Mass Production Confirmation and Production 
Full-Scale Simulations using Zero Batch Production

Once through the Labeling Review Meeting and Performance Review 

Meeting during the development phase, the product will enter the 

production ramp-up stage, which represents a transition point between 

development and full-scale production where key adjustments are made 

to ensure stable and high-quality production. 

We have typically used this ramp-up stage to conduct a series of 

trial runs to verify that ingredients are equally dispersed, that the filling 

mechanism is working, and that products are properly sealed and labeled, 

in order to identify any potential problems. In addition, in recent years, 

we have also implemented zero batch production into our other 

verification procedures. Zero batch production is a test production run 

using the exact same scale, equipment, ingredients and raw materials 

as a real production run, in order to ensure the completeness of 

products and identify real or potential quality issues that would be 

impossible to recognize from the drawing board. 

After ramp-up confirmation, the product arrives at the production 

stage, during which we use operational manuals, adjust equipment, 

educate technicians and ensure the production floor is clean in order to 

maintain stable production processes. We also conduct initial shipment 

verification where we reconfirm whether all necessary items were 

checked during development and production stages prior to shipping the 

initial lot. Only products able to clear this second check without issue 

are shipped to our distribution partners and on to retail outlets. 

Sales and Follow-up
Improving Products through Customer Feedback 

After releasing a product, customers provide the customer service 

center with their thoughts and recommendations. 

The customer service center is committed to identifying with customers 

by recognizing each individual situation and emotion rather than simply 

understanding the usage scenario. Our customer service representatives 

are trained to respond with sensitivity to individual inquiries and 

suggestions, which in turn greatly improve service and product quality. 

Customer inquiries and suggestions are also forwarded to our 

development and manufacturing divisions, where they are reflected in 

product improvements and future development. During trial production 

of an improved product, we carefully verify if customer expectations are 

met. Furthermore, after the improved product is released, we continually 

analyze customer feedback to ascertain whether the improvement was 

adequate or whether additional modifications are necessary. 

Recently in Japan there have been several high-profile incidents 

involving the falsifying of a product’s origin, or the discovery of pesticide 

residue or foreign objects in food. This has made consumers more aware 

than ever before of the need for quality assurance. As a result, the number 

of inquires received by Kobayashi Pharmaceutical is on the rise, while 

the inquiries themselves are becoming more detailed. To better respond 

to these needs, we have developed a callback system where a customer 

service representative returns the customer’s phone call to conduct 

a more thorough review of the inquiry or suggestion. 

Two-Way Communications with Customers 

Annual Number of 
Inquiries Received

Inquiries by Business Segment 
(FY ended March 2010) 

Listening to the Voices of our Customers Helped us Create 
an Easier-to-Read Expiration Date for Pharmaceutical Products 

Previously, the expiration date for our fever 

and pain reliever Hakkiri Ace a had been 

imprinted on the packaging. However, we 

received several comments from customers 

that the imprinted date was difficult to read, 

so we decided to redesign the expiration 

date and now use a printed white-colored 

text, making it much easier to read.

Educational Program for Physicians 

Discontinued products 
and Others

9%
Pharmaceuticals

30%
Deodorizing Air 
Fresheners

6%

Sanitary Products 
and Skin Care

18%

Food and Oral 
Hygiene Products

22%

Household Sundries 
and Cleaning 
Products

15%

Customer Voices
(Inquiries, suggestions, etc.) 

Customer-centric approach

Provide better products 
and services 

Senior Management 
Sales, Operating Departments

(Development, Research, 
Manufacturing) 

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical 

Customers 
(Consumers) 

Distribution 
Partners

(FY)

80,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Customer 

Voices 

Up 7% 

Before 
redesign

After 
redesign

Customer Service Center
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Corporate Governance

Launch of the Toilet Cleanliness Project in 
Commemoration of Bluelet 40th Anniversary

Social Action Programs

Focus on Cutting CO2 and Waste Emissions

The Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group is fully committed to actively 

reducing its environmental footprint to address the shared environmental 

concerns of its stakeholders, and has established an ISO 14001-certified 

environmental management system.

As a company we are also actively pursuing ways to cut CO2 

emissions and help fight global warming by promoting energy efficiency 

initiatives within our Manufacturing Division. For the fiscal year ended 

March 2010, Manufacturing Division CO2 emissions totaled 13,689 tons. 

This represents a 1.4% year over-year-reduction, as we were able to 

eliminate 199 tons of CO2 emissions.

In terms of waste material management, the Kobayashi Pharmaceutical 

Group  has implemented a zero emissions policy. Zero emissions refers 

to our target of reducing the percentage of landfill waste we produce to 

under 1% of total waste production. To reach this goal, we are making 

efforts to improve production efficiency, utilize natural resources more 

effectively, and reuse materials through thorough waste sorting and 

recycling. In the fiscal year ended March 2010, waste material volume 

grew 4.2% over the previous term to 3,668 tons due to increases in 

production. Recycling volume, however, totaled 3,660 tons, up 21.1% 

year over year, as we were able to improve our recycling rate from 85.8% 

in fiscal 2009 to 99.8% in fiscal 2010. As a result, we achieved the goal 

of zero waste emissions. 

Initiatives Aimed at Reducing the Manufacturing Division’s 
Environmental Footprint 

Promoting the Use of Recyclable Materials and 
Lighter Weight Packaging and Containers 

Containers and packaging play an integral role as a part of the product: 

a means to convey product information at the time of use, and to 

protect the product during shipment. The Kobayashi Pharmaceutical 

Group is actively promoting the 3Rs (reduce, reuse, recycle) through the 

development of recycled, lighter weight containers and packaging 

that meet these requirements using a minimum amount of materials. 

For example, we reduced the amount of plastics by 5% in 

our deodorizing air freshener Shoshugen for Rooms by making the 

product container thinner. In addit ion, our newly redesigned 

deodorizing air freshener Shoshugen for Toilets and oral breath 

freshener Breath Care now use recycled materials. Furthermore, as of 

April 2010, we offer refills or replacement cartridges for 59 items from 

25 product lines, enabling customers to reuse the original container. 

Developing Eco-Friendly Products 

(t-CO2)

(t)

(%)

Container Changed for Redesigned Shoshugen for Rooms

Manufacturing Division 
CO2 Emissions  

Before After 

Reduced 
amount of 

plastic used in 
container  

0 3,000
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2007

2008

2009

2010

6,000 9,000 12,000 15,000

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

0 1,000 2,000 3,000

100

4,000

80

2,29412,538

12,803

13,127

13,888

13,689

2,074

2,059

3,023

3,660

85.5

Recycling Rate Recycling Volume 

99.7

98.7

99.8

99.8

Daiya Ohara
Technological Innovation Dept. Chief

Trial and Error Used to Reduce Container Material 

The initial design proposal for the redesigned Shoshugen for Rooms 
focused primarily on improving the product’s marketing appeal, calling for 

a doubling in the amount of plastic resin used compared to the current 

container. As such, we pursued a trial and error approach to finding the 

right mix of materials that met certain 

conditions: reduced materials; can be 

easily mass-produced; strong, yet 

having broad market appeal. 

We arrived at the ideal lower plastic 

content container design after conducting 

a series of analyses on 0.1-millimeter 

thick designs that increased the amount 

of three-dimensional rounded surfaces, 

ultimately helping us to reduce the 

amount of plastic required.

Recycling Volume and Rate 

In 2009, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical’s cleanser and deodorizer for flush 

toilets, Bluelet, marked its 40th anniversary. This milestone was achieved 

largely thanks to the continued patronage of our many customers and 

business partners. In appreciation of Bluelet’s success we launched 

a fitting campaign, called the Toilet Cleanliness Project. 

Through this project, we donated a portion of the proceeds from 

the sale of Bluelet to the purchase of composting toilets to help alleviate 

the shortage of public bathroom facilities in the UNESCO World Natural 

Heritage sites of Shiretoko, Shirakami-Sanchi and Yakushima Island in Japan. 

In addition, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical also hosted an event for 

children and parents to assist with the cleanup of public bathrooms and 

surrounding areas in eight national and quasi-national parks in Japan. 

Nearly 400 parents, children and Kobayashi Pharmaceutical employees 

participated in the cleanup activities, while enjoying the natural surroundings. 

Ceremony marking the donation of 
composting toilets on Yakushima Island

Children participating in cleanup activities 
at Lake Shikotsu in Hokkaido
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Toshiyuki Morii

Statutory Auditor

Masahiro Hiraoka
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Directors

Senior Executive Officer Executive Officers

Kazumasa Kobayashi

Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer
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President and Chief 
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Corporate Auditors
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Executive Director
General Manager
International Business Division

Susumu Horiuchi
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Product Business Headquarters
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Kiribai Chemical Co., Ltd.

Takafumi Sakaguchi
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Medical Device Division
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Depnty General Manager
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1 The Company introduced the
executive officer system. Six 
directors-Yutaka Kobayashi, 
Akihiro Kobayashi, Jyoji Miki, 
Masaaki Tanaka, Takashi Tsujino, 
and Satoshi Yamane-each 
concurrently serve as executive 
officers.

Directors, Corporate Auditors and Officers

Hiroshi Hayashi

Outside Auditor

Jyoji Miki

Senior Executive Director
General Manager
Household Division
Product Business Headquarters

Takashi Tsujino

Executive Director
General Manager
Health Care Division
Product Business Headquarters

Ryuji Sakai

Outside Auditor

Akihiro Kobayashi

Senior Executive Director
Senior General Manager
Product Business Headquarters
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Gross Profit
Gross Profit to Net Sales

(%)

(%)
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2006

79,613

2007

84,717

2008

81,187

2009 2010

71,889

Gross Profit / 
Gross Profit to Net Sales

100,000

80,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

0

100

80

60

40

20

0

32.3 33.0 35.5
54.6 55.6

SG&A Expenses / 
SG&A Expenses to Net Sales

SG&A Expenses
SG&A Expenses to Net Sales

(¥ Million)

(¥ Million)

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

100,000

80,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

0

50

40

30

20

10

0

42.1

27.425.925.4

42.5

62,734 66,688

52,86154,847

Operating Income
Operating Income to Net Sales
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Pursuing corporate brand management focused on
“You make a wish and we make it happen”

The Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group follows a management policy that defines the company’s mission as 

providing people and society with comfort through continuous “Creativity and Innovation.” Based on this 

policy, the Group discovers, creates and provides products that our customers didn’t even realize could 

improve their health, comfort and happiness. This endeavor is summed up in our brand slogan, “you make 

a wish and we make it happen,” which is the core focus of our business activities.

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical is committed to the ongoing pursuit of “Something New, Something 

Different” through the development of new products and services in the current age of rapid changes in 

consumer preferences and heightened competition. We believe that this process is the driving force 

behind growth. Furthermore, we will not only enhance the brand strength of our individual products and 

services, but also raise customer satisfaction, increase our income, and optimize corporate value for 

shareholders and other stakeholders by earning customers’ trust by linking the Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical brand with reliable products and service. This “corporate brand management” is the 

Group’s management strategy.

Scope of Consolidation and Application of the Equity Method

In the fiscal year under review, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical had 26 consolidated subsidiaries (12 in Japan 
and 14 overseas1) and one affiliate2 in Japan accounted for by the equity method. 

The Company classifies its business activities into three segments: Consumer Products (15 

consolidated subsidiaries); Medical Devices (4 consolidated subsidiaries and 1 equity-method affiliate); 

and Other Operations (7 consolidated subsidiaries).
1 Kobayashi Pharmaceutical (Singapore) Private Limited was established on April 1, 2009, and added to the scope of consolidation.

2 We divested all of our shareholdings in Itoh Kanpo Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. to the company on April 28, 2009, so it is no longer an equity-method affiliate. 

Overview of Consolidated Business Results
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, the global economy failed to pull out of the recession 

that had been triggered by the US subprime loan problems, but there were signs of recovery, 

particularly in Asia. Despite some signs of economic recovery in Japan, the operating environment 

remained harsh. Corporate revenues deteriorated, while the stagnant growth of employee income 

meant that consumers remained conservative in their spending habits and focused on money-saving, 

which led in turn to deflation.  

Despite these conditions, the Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group fully capitalized on its 

management philosophy, “Creativity and Innovation,” to stimulate potential customer needs by 

delivering products and services that create new markets and energize existing markets by launching 

new value-added products and services. 

Net Sales

Consumer Products recorded an increase in net sales due to the launch of new products and stronger 

sales of our main existing brands. Net sales also grew for the Medical Devices Business, thanks to the 

strategy of placing particular emphasis on certain products in the orthopedics and surgery room fields.

 As a result, net sales for this fiscal year rose 2.8% year-on-year to ¥129,184 million. 

Gross Profit and Operating Income

Cost of sales increased 0.6% year-on-year to ¥57,193 million in fiscal 2010, but gross profit (after 

provisions for returned products) increased 4.7% year-on-year to ¥71,888 million as a result of higher 

sales. Sales, general and administrative expenses rose 3.8% to ¥54,847 million, attributable to an 

increase in marketing investments such as sales promotion and advertising expenses. As a result, 

operating income increased 7.7% year-over-year to ¥17,041 million.

The gross profit to net sales ratio improved 1 percentage point from the previous fiscal year’s 54.6% 

to 55.6%, and the sales, general and administrative expenses to net sales ratio worsened by 0.4 

percentage points, from 42.1% to 42.5%, while the operating income to net sales ratio improved 0.6 

percentage points from 12.6% to 13.2%. 

68,679

62,611

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Sales to third parties 

Inter-group sales and transfers

Total

68,869
25,907
94,776

71,717
30,785

102,503

84,707
26,213

110,920

112,594
26

112,620

115,477

37

115,514

Net Sales and Operating Income (Loss) by Segment

Consumer Products 

Sales to third parties

Inter-group sales and transfers

Total

156,933
0

156,934

164,838
1

164,840

131,602
359

131,962

—

—

—

—

—

—

Wholesale Operation 

Sales to third parties 17,126 16,496 10,728 11,325 12,111

Medical Devices 

Sales to third parties

Inter-group sales and transfers

Total

3,923
9,053

12,976

3,969
9,142

13,112

1,788
6,306
8,094

1,773
5,507
7,281

1,595

5,484

7,080

Other Operations

Consumer Products

Wholesale Operation

Medical Devices

Other Operations

2006 2007 2008
15,446
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582
402

16,560
323
561
390

18,005
(131)
(418)
431

2009
15,910

—

(554)
473

2010

16,507

—
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400

Net Sales

Operating Income 
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Non-operating Income/Expenses and Ordinary Income

Non-operating income rose 22.6% over the previous year to ¥1,562 million. This improvement was 

mainly attributable to an increase in real estate rental income resulting from the move to new 

headquarters. Non-operating expenses fell 13.0% over the previous year to ¥1,531 million, primarily due 

to a change in the equity method. As a result of the change, Kobayashi did not post equity in losses 

resulting from the divestment of shares in Itoh Kanpo Co., Ltd., leading to a rise in ordinary income of 

11.3% to ¥17,071 million.

Extraordinary Gains/Losses and Net Income

Extraordinary income fell 88.2% over the previous fiscal year to ¥185 million.

Extraordinary losses rose 325.7% to ¥2,703 million. This was primarily due to a ¥1,456 million loss 

on sales of stocks of subsidiaries and affiliates resulting from the sale of shareholdings in Itoh Kanpo and 

a ¥32.2 billion impairment loss. Accordingly, the Company posted a net extraordinary loss of ¥251.8 

million (sum of extraordinary income and extraordinary loss) after recording ¥937 million in extraordinary 

income in the previous fiscal year.

As a result, net income before taxes and other adjustments fell 10.6% over the previous year to 

¥14,553 million, while net income rose 4.5% to ¥9,249 million due to a decrease in corporate taxes—a 

tax benefit of the sale of Itoh Kanpo stock. 

Net income per share grew 4.6%, from ¥215.89 in the previous fiscal year to ¥225.88.

The Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group classifies its business activities into three segments: Consumer 

Products, Medical Devices and Other Operations.

Net sales by segment include inter-group sales and transfers, which amounted to ¥5,534 million in 

fiscal 2009 and ¥5,522 million in fiscal 2010.

Segment Information
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2009
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Changes
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1 The number of unprofitable brands includes certain new products.

Net Sales by Category

Trends in Number of Profitable and Unprofitable Brands
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Pharmaceuticals

Oral hygiene products

Sanitary products

Deodorizing air fresheners

Household sundries

Food products

Body warmers

Total

(¥ Million)

89

We have set a target for new products in this segment to account for more than 10% of consolidated net 

sales in their first year and to account for more than 35% by their fourth year. We launched 16 products 

(excluding nutritional supplements) during this fiscal year, with new products in their fourth year accounting 

for 26.7% of net sales, while new products in their first year accounted for 8.3% of net sales. 

In this fiscal year, we launched 16 new consumer products (excluding nutritional supplements) in this 

segment with the aim of creating new markets and expanding existing markets. Several of these 

products made a particularly positive contribution to our earnings: Visrrat Gold a (a Chinese herbal 

anti-obesity medicine that helps reduce excess body fat by accelerating fat metabolization), Sekai-Koro 

(a liquid fragrant room deodorizer that delivers a variety of exotic natural aromas from around the world), 

Chinshite Kongari Sakanayaki Pack (a cooking pack for easily grilling fish to a golden brown in the 

microwave), and Toilet-senjo-chu Sabotta Ring (a bubbling bleach power that cleans dark rings in toilet bowls). 

In addition, our major existing products such as Bluelet (a toilet bowl cleanser that is one of the 

company’s flagship brands), Breath Care (breath freshener), Shouyou a (a medically formulated 

toothpaste that prevents alveolar pyorrhea), and mail-order nutritional supplements made significant 

contributions to both net sales and income for the year. 

As a result, net sales for the Consumer Products segment grew 2.6% year-on-year to ¥115,514 

million, while operating income rose 3.8% year-on-year to ¥16,507 million. 

In addition to conducting test marketing to improve our hit ratio and following our own strict market 

launch standards for new products, we have tightened profitability control for existing brands while 

withdrawing brands which failed to become profitable.

As a result, the number of unprofitable brands has decreased.

Fiscal 2010 Net Sales and Operating Income

Trends in Number of Profitable and Unprofitable Brands

New Products as a Percentage of Net Sales

Consumer Products Operation
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9,507
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Kobayashi Medical Co., Ltd.

eVent

Others

Total

2009
Sales % of Total Sales Sales % of Total Sales

2010

Sales % of Total Sales

Changes

The Medical Devices segment continued activities designed to enhance brand recognition and expand 

domestic market share in the fields of orthopedics and surgical products, which are expected to grow.

Net sales in this segment rose 6.9% year-on-year to ¥12,111 million. By category, net sales of 

Kobayashi Medical Company, with its strengths in the fields of orthopedics and surgical products, 

increased 6.9% year-on-year, thanks to its strategy of focusing its core business. Net sales of eVent 

Medical Ltd. rose 32.9% year-on-year due to higher sales of its ventilators.

The ¥554 million operating loss posted in fiscal 2009 was reversed to ¥143 million in operating income.   

We have committed to adapt to the dramatic changes in the market for medical devices, such as 

the drop in official medical costs, by using advanced expertise and greater production efficiencies to 

raise our competitiveness. Accordingly, Kobayashi Medical Company was spun off on April 1, 2010 as 

Kobayashi Medical Co., Ltd. 

Medical Devices Operation

Other Operations

Business in this segment, which includes activities such as transportation, sales promotions and market 

research, support the two segments above. Although each affiliated company conducts business on a 

financially independent basis, one of the objectives is to contribute to the profit of the above two business 

segments, and the Group reviewed the delivery prices of the materials and services provided by 

companies in this segment.

As a result, this business segment recorded net sales of ¥7,080 million, down 2.8% year-on-year, 

and operating income of ¥72 million, down 15.4%.

The Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group divides its segments into four regions: Japan, North America 

(the US), Europe (the UK, Ireland) and Asia (China, Singapore). Intersegment sales and transfers are 

included in the net sales of each segment. This amount totaled ¥2,497 million in the previous fiscal 

year and ¥2,550 million in this fiscal year. 

Japan
In this fiscal year, we aggressively developed products in Japan to create new markets and expand 

existing markets. As a result, sales rose 3.1% year-on-year to ¥124,087 million and operating 

income increased 4.0% year-on-year to ¥17,256 million.

North America
In this fiscal year, sales in North America fell 7.0% year-on-year to ¥3,075 million and the operating 

loss improved 33.9% year-on-year to ¥450 million.

Europe
In this fiscal year, sales in Europe rose 5.6% year-on-year to ¥1,392 million and the ¥110 million 

operating loss in fiscal 2009 was reversed to an operating income of ¥75 million.

Asia
In this fiscal year, sales of body warmers and forehead cooling sheets were strong in Asia, but the 

yen’s appreciation impacted the company’s efforts to reduce costs and expand the market, resulting 

in a foreign exchange loss. As a result, sales fell 1.3% year-on-year to ¥3,179 million and operating 

income increased 1,637.6% year-on-year to ¥181 million.

Overview of Segments by Location

Net Sales by Category

Fiscal 2010 Net Sales and Operating Income
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Total assets were ¥131,972 million as of the end of this fiscal year an increase of 5.4% compared with 

the end of the previous fiscal year. 

Current assets increased 16.4% to total ¥85,208 million. The main reasons for this increase were a 

43.2% (¥9,856 million) rise in cash and time deposits compared to the end of the previous fiscal year, 

and a 66.8% (¥4,006 million) increase in marketable securities.

Property, plant and equipment, net, decreased 16.1% to ¥14,779 million. Land value declined 

36.6% (¥2,000 million), and buildings and structures (net) fell 11.2% (¥795 million) compared to the 

end of the previous fiscal year. These were primarily due to a transfer of some property, plant and 

equipment to the category of “investments and other assets” as a result of headquarters relocation.

Intangible fixed assets declined 15.9% to ¥8,447 million due to the annual amortization of goodwill.

Investments and other assets fell 3.4% compared to the end of the previous fiscal year, to ¥23,536 

million. Although ¥3,149 million in investments in real estate (net) was included in this category as a result 

of the aforementioned headquarters relocation, investments in securities fell 18.4% (¥3,367 million).

Total liabilities as of the end of this fiscal year were ¥47,368 million, down 3.0% from the end of the 

previous fiscal year. 

Current liabilities decreased 2.0% to ¥39,024 million. Although short-term loans increased 

269.7% (¥1,246 million) as a result of the spinning off of Kobayashi Medical Division, this was offset 

by a 22.5% (¥1,004 million) decrease in accrued income taxes due to the tax benefits from the sale of 

Ito Kanpo Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.and a 6.2% (¥963 million) decrease in notes payable and trade 

accounts payable. As a result, the current ratio improved by 34.6% to 218.3%.

Long-term liabilities declined 7.4% to ¥8,344 million. 

Net assets including minority interests as of the end of this fiscal year came to ¥84,603 million, up 

10.8% over the end of the previous fiscal year. This can be attributed primarily to a ¥6,874 million 

increase in retained earnings and a ¥764 million decrease in unrealized holding gains on securities.

As a result, the equity ratio rose 3.1 percentage points from 60.9% to 64.0%. The return on 

equity (ROE) was unchanged from the end of the previous fiscal year, at 11.5%. The ratio of net 

income to total assets (ROA1) increased 0.9 percentage points from 12.4% to 13.3%. 

1 Return on assets = Net profit before income tax net income / Average total assets ×100

Assets

Liabilities

Net Assets

Analysis of Financial Position

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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(¥ Million)

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

0

2006

2,377

2007

2,476

2008

2,813

2009

3,361

2010

3,962

R&D Expenses

(¥ Million)

50,000

40,000

30,000

20,000

10,000

0

2006

24,436

2007

19,090

2008

17,164

2009

23,813

2010

32,623

Cash and Cash Equivalents
at End of Year

(¥ Million)

2009
Amount 

2010

Amount 

12,849

(1,381)

11,467

(4,445)

23,813

15,319

(4,701)

10,618

(1,815)

32,623

Amount Change (%)

2,470

(3,319)

(848)

2,630

8,810

19.2

240.3

(7.4)

(59.2)

37.0

1 Free cash flows are calculated in the following way:
   Free cash flows = Cash flows from operating activities + Cash flows from investing activities

Cash Flows Changes

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Free cash flows

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

We believe that R&D underpins new product development, which is one of our core strengths. 

In this fiscal year, the Consumer Products division developed 16 products, excluding nutritional 

supplements. The Medical Devices division worked aggressively to develop ventilators and jointly 

develop medical adhesives.

Consequently, R&D expenses included in selling, general and administrative expenses increased 

17.9% over the previous fiscal year to ¥3,962 million yen.

R&D Expenses

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities was ¥15,319 million, a 19.2% increase compared with the 

previous fiscal year. The main factors were ¥14,553 million in income before income taxes and 

minority interests, ¥2,996 million in depreciation and amortization, ¥1,456 million in losses on the sale 

of affiliated company stocks, ¥1,389 million in decreased value of inventories and ¥6,738 million in 

income tax paid. 

Cash Flows from Investment Activities
Net cash used in investing activities totaled ¥4,701 million yen, up 240.3%. Major factors affecting 

this cash flow were ¥26,989 million in the purchase of short-term investment securities, ¥23,000 

million in proceeds from sales and redemption of short-term securities, ¥2,624 million in payments 

for the purchase of property, plant and equipment, ¥1,084 million for the acquisition of investments 

in securities, and ¥3,500 million in proceeds from the sale of stock of subsidiaries and affiliates.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities totaled ¥1,815 million (down 59.2%). This was primarily due to 

¥1,236 million in revenue from a net increase in short-term loans payable, ¥2,374 million in dividends 

paid, and ¥675 million in repayments of lease obligations.

As a result, cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2010 totaled ¥32,623 million, an increase 

of ¥8,810 million from the end of the previous fiscal year. 

Cash Flow Analysis
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Sales of some of the Group’s products, such as body warmers, hay 

fever-related products, and cold remedies, are highly susceptible to 

seasonal factors such as temperatures and airborne pollen counts, 

which could have a large impact on sales. Trends in sales of these 

products could therefore affect the Group’s operating results and 

financial position.

The Group’s trading transactions, principally the import of medical 

devices, are subject to fluctuations in exchange rates. However, the 

Group reduces their impact of such fluctuations on operating results 

mainly by hedging foreign currency risk through forward exchange 

transactions. The Group does not engage in derivative transactions 

for speculative purposes. Line items denominated in foreign 

currencies, including the net sales, expenses, assets and liabilities of 

overseas subsidiaries, are converted into yen for the purpose of 

preparing consolidated financial statements. In the event of a large 

change in the prevailing exchange rate on the conversion date, there 

will be a substantial corresponding change in the yen value of such 

line items. 

The Group is also exposed to the risk of changes in regulations by 

foreign governments, as well as economic conditions. These and other 

factors could affect the Group’s operating results and financial position.

The Group holds large volumes of information mainly as part of its 

mail-order shopping businesses, including personal information. 

For this reason, the Group has established an internal information 

management system in conjunction with enhancing in-house training 

programs and information management. However, the Group’s 

operating results and financial position could be affected by a loss of 

public trust caused by a leak of information.

Third-party infringement of intellectual property rights, including the 

Group’s brands and related trademarks, may result in large damages 

to the Group. Furthermore, the inadvertent infringement of the 

intellectual property rights of a third party by the Group may also 

have adverse consequences. These and other factors could impact 

the Group’s operating results and financial position.

Most of the investment securities owned by the Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical Group are listed, and therefore have a risk of share 

price fluctuation. Any losses or declines in valuation gains for 

securities, based on the market prices of the fiscal year ends, may 

impact the business results and financial status of the Kobayashi 

Pharmaceutical Group.

The Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group aims to differentiate itself from 

rival companies by developing new products and services that satisfy 

customer needs. This is crucial as the Group’s main products target 

retail consumers. However, we are susceptible to intensifying 

price-based competition triggered by the launch of competing 

products by rivals. In response, we may have to increase development 

costs for new products, or advertising and sales promotion expenses 

to stimulate demand. These and other factors could affect the Group’s 

operating results and financial position.

The Group pursues aggressive product development activities as part 

of its strategy for spurring growth and launching new products every 

year in the spring and fall. However, delays in developing or bringing new 

products to market, sales of competing products, and other factors 

may have an impact on sales of the Group’s new products, which 

could in turn affect the Group’s operating results and financial position.

While enhancing product lineups through mergers and acquisitions, 

(M&A) and business alliances, the Group is striving to expand its 

sales regions in pursuit of a broader range of new markets both in 

Japan and overseas. However, these M&As and alliances are subject 

to uncertainties. The Group may be unable to reap the anticipated 

benefits of M&As and alliances or may be forced to change its 

business strategies due to unforeseen post-merger or alliance events. 

This could affect the Group’s operating results and financial position.

The Group’s businesses are subject to the Pharmaceutical Affairs Act 

as well as other relevant laws and regulations. The Medical Devices 

Operation is particularly susceptible to reductions in NHI 

reimbursement prices. These and other factors could affect the 

Group’s operating results and financial position.

The Group’s products include pharmaceuticals, quasi-pharmaceuticals, 

cosmetics, medical equipment and foods. Any health problems 

caused to consumers or patients as a result of quality defects in 

these products may result in large damages to the Group. This could 

affect the Group’s operating results and financial position.

The Group’s Consumer Products Operation is exposed to the risk of 

changes in raw material prices. Despite ongoing cost reductions, the 

Group’s operating results and financial condition may be affected by 

a sharp rise in raw material prices triggered by surging crude oil 

prices and other factors.

(1) Highly Competitive Business Environment (7) Impact of Inclement Weather

(8) Overseas Business Risk

(9) Information Management and System Risk

(10) Intellectual Property Risk

(11) Share Price Fluctuation

(2) Highly Susceptible to Sales of New Products

(3) Risk Concerning Inability to Reap Anticipated Benefits of 
      Mergers or Alliances

(4) Legal Constraints

(5) Product Liability Risk

(6) Changes in Raw Material Prices

Risk Factors

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Consolidated Statements of Income
Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009

Net sales (Note 19)
Cost of sales 

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses:

Sales promotions

Freight and storage

Advertising

Provision for allowance for doubtful accounts

Salaries and bonuses

Net pension cost

Provision for accrued retirement benefits for directors  
and corporate auditors

Taxes and dues other than income taxes

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of goodwill

Office rent and other rental charges

External service fees

Research and development costs

Other

Total selling, general and administrative expenses 

Operating income (Note 19)
Other income (expenses):

Interest and dividend income

Equity in earnings (losses) of affiliates

Interest expense

Sales discounts

Exchange loss

Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment

Royalty income

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Loss on impairment of fixed assets (Notes 6 and 19)
Non-recurring expenses related to collection of products

Gain on sales of goodwill (Note 13)
Loss on sales of shares of an affiliate

Loss on devaluation of investments in subsidiaries and 
affiliated companies

Gain on sales of investments in securities

Other, net

Income before income taxes and minority interests

Income taxes (Note 11):
Current

Deferred

Minority interests

Net income

¥125,693

57,014

68,679

6,068

4,637

13,852

90

8,536

752

125

280

715

1,340

1,605

4,936

3,362

6,563

52,861

15,818

368

(163)

(124)

(1,229)

(87)

18

608

(98)

  (41)

(79)

1,102

—

(143)

382

(62)

16,270

7,596

(175)

7,421

(4)

¥    8,853

$1,388,478

615,810

772,668

68,433

50,957

149,936

—

98,463

9,147

54

2,773

8,975

13,543

16,767

56,062

42,595

71,805

589,510

183,158

3,547

849

(957)

(12,941)

(785)

494

6,750

(2,709)

(3,472)

 —

—

(15,649)

(1,010)

0

(858)

156,417

61,468

(4,471)

56,997

0

 $ 99,420

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

 (Note 1)

2009 2010

¥129,184

57,295

71,889

6,367

4,741

13,950

—

9,161

851

5

258

835

1,260

1,560

5,216

3,963

6,681

54,848

17,041

330

79

(89)

(1,204)

(73)

46

628

(252)

  (323)

—

—

(1,456)

(94)

0

(80)

14,553

5,719

(416)

5,303

0

 ¥    9,250

2010

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements



Assets

Current assets:

Cash and time deposits (Notes 4 and 15)

Trade notes and accounts receivable (Note 15)

Securities (Notes 4, 5 and 15)

Inventories:

Commodities and finished goods 

Work in process

Raw materials and supplies

Deferred income taxes (Note 11)

Other current assets

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment:

Land (Note 6)

Buildings and structures (Note 6)

Machinery, equipment and vehicles (Note 6)

Construction in progress

Leased assets (Notes 6 and 14)

Other

Accumulated depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, net

Investments and other assets:

Investments in securities (Notes 5 and 15):

Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates

Other

Deferred income taxes (Note 11)

Goodwill (Note 6)

Software

Other intangible assets

Investment properties, net (Note 7)

Other assets

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total investments and other assets

Total assets (Note 19)

Consolidated Financial Statements

 

 ¥  22,814

27,439

6,001

10,503

572

1,745

12,820

3,115

1,081

(98)

73,172

5,471

17,024

5,118

314

2,611

5,363

35,901

(18,283)

17,618

6,521

11,806

18,327

3,250

7,682

918

1,444

—

2,859

(60)

34,420

¥125,210

 

$   351,139

283,717

107,545

96,367

5,901

20,787

123,055

39,123

12,145

(892)

915,832

37,307

166,369

63,328

752

28,009

59,201

354,966

(196,120)

158,846

19,658

141,133

160,791

29,288

67,896

10,082

12,822

33,846

30,460

(1,419)

343,766

$1,418,444

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

 (Note 1)

Consolidated Balance Sheets
Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2010 and 2009

2009 2010

 

 ¥  32,670

26,397

10,006

8,965

549

1,934

11,448

3,640

1,131

(83)

85,209

3,471

15,479

5,892

70

2,606

5,508

33,026

(18,247)

14,779

1,829

13,131

14,960

2,725

6,317

938

1,193

3,149

2,834

(132)

31,984

¥131,972

2010

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Short-term loans (Notes 8 and 15)

Trade notes and accounts payable (Note 15)

Lease obligations (Notes 9 and 15)

Accrued income taxes (Notes 11 and 15)

Other accounts payable

Reserve for sales returns

Accrued bonuses

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:

Long-term debt (Note 8)

Lease obligations (Notes 9 and 15)

Accrued retirement benefits for employees (Note 10)

Accrued retirement benefits for directors and corporate 

auditors

Other liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Shareholders’ equity (Note 12):

Common stock:

Authorized – 170,100,000 shares

Issued – 42,525,000 shares in 2010 and 2009

Capital surplus

Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost

Total shareholders’ equity

Valuation and translation adjustments:

Unrealized holding loss on securities

Unrealized loss on deferred hedges

Translation adjustments

Total valuation and translation adjustments

Stock acquisition rights

Minority interests

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

 ¥       463

15,533

647

4,456

13,551

1,277

1,855

2,053

39,835

182

1,503

4,678

1,577

1,071

9,011

48,846

3,450

4,219

78,678

(4,706)

81,641

(1,726)

(728)

(2,978)

(5,432)

143

12

76,364

¥125,210

 $ 20,346

156,599

6,234

37,102

137,006

14,682

21,754

25,720

419,443

—

12,360

51,741

387

25,194

89,682

509,125

37,081

45,347

919,529

(50,527)

951,430

(10,329)

(3,472)

(30,191)

(43,992)

1,752

129

909,319

$1,418,444

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

 (Note 1)

2009 2010

 

 ¥    1,893

14,570

580

3,452

12,747

1,366

2,024

2,393

39,025

—

1,150

4,814

36

2,344

8,344

47,369

3,450

4,219

85,553

(4,701)

88,521

(961)

(323)

(2,809)

(4,093)

163

12

84,603

¥131,972

2010
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009

Balance at March 31, 2008

  Net income for the year

  Cash dividends 

  Purchases of treasury stock

  Disposition of treasury stock

  Other changes

Balance at March 31, 2009

  Net income for the year

  Cash dividends 

  Purchases of treasury stock

  Disposition of treasury stock

  Other changes

Balance at March 31, 2010

Balance at March 31, 2009

  Net income for the year

  Cash dividends 

  Purchases of treasury stock

  Disposition of treasury stock

  Other changes

Balance at March 31, 2010

Number of
shares
issued 

(Thousands)
Common

stock
Capital
surplus

Retained
earnings

Treasury
stock, at

cost

Unrealized
holding

(loss) gain
on

securities

Millions of yen

Unrealized
loss
on

deferred
hedges

Translation
adjustments

Stock
acquisition

rights
Minority
interests

Total
net

assets

Common
stock

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Capital
surplus

Retained
earnings

Treasury
stock, at

cost

Unrealized
holding

(loss) gain
on

securities

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Unrealized
loss
on

deferred
hedges

Translation
adjustments

Stock
acquisition

rights
Minority
interests

Total
net

assets

42,525

—

—

—

—

—

42,525

—

—

—

—

—

42,525

¥3,450

—

—

—

—

—

 3,450

—

—

—

—

—

¥3,450

¥4,214

—

—

—

5

—

4,219

—

—

—

—

—

¥4,219

¥72,130

8,853

(2,305)

—

—

—

78,678

9,250

(2,375)

—

—

—

¥85,553

¥(3,230)

—

—

(1,675)

199

—

 (4,706)

—

—

(1)

6

—

¥(4,701)

¥1,571

—

—

—

—

(3,297)

 (1,726)

—

—

—

—

765

¥  (961)

¥(691)

—

—

—

—

(37)

 (728)

—

—

—

—

405

¥(323)

¥   (340)

—

—

—

—

(2,638)

 (2,978)

—

—

—

—

169

¥(2,809)

¥  63

—

—

—

—

80

143

—

—

—

—

20

¥163

¥16

—

—

—

—

(4)

12

—

—

—

—

0

¥12

¥77,183

8,853

(2,305)

(1,675)

204

(5,896)

76,364

9,250

(2,375)

(1)

6

1,359

¥84,603

$37,081

—

—

—

—

—

$37,081

$45,347

—

—

—

—

—

$45,347

$845,636

99,420

(25,527)

—

—

—

$919,529

$(50,580)

—

—

(11)

64

—

$(50,527)

$(18,551)

—

—

—

—

8,222

$(10,329)

$(7,825)

—

—

—

—

4,353

$(3,472)

$(32,008)

—

—

—

—

1,817

$(30,191)

$1,537

—

—

—

—

215

$1,752

$129

—

—

—

—

—

$129

$820,766

99,420

(25,527)

(11)

64

14,607

$909,319

Consolidated Financial Statements
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Cash flows from operating activities:

Income before income taxes and minority interests 
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization
Loss on impairment of fixed assets
Increase in allowance for doubtful accounts
Increase in accrued retirement benefits
Interest and dividend income
Interest expense
Equity in (earnings) losses of affiliates
Gain on sales of goodwill
Loss on sales of shares of an affiliate
Loss on disposal or sales of property, plant and equipment, net

Loss on devaluation of investments in subsidiaries and 
affiliated companies

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in trade notes and accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in inventories
(Decrease) increase in trade notes and accounts payable
(Decrease) increase in other payables
Increase in consumption taxes payable

Other
Subtotal

Interest and dividends received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:

Increase in time deposits
Purchases of short-term securities
Proceeds from sales and redemption of short-term securities
Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
Payments for purchases of intangible assets
Purchase of investments in securities
Proceeds from sales of investments in securities
Increase in other assets
Proceeds from sales of goodwill
Proceeds from sales of shares in an affiliate
Other
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Increase (decrease) in short-term loans, net
Proceeds from long-term debt
Dividends paid
Increase in treasury stock
Decrease in lease obligations
Other
Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 4)

 ¥16,270

4,214
41
93

200
(368)
124
163

(1,102)
—
80

143

(1,692)
(722)
427
652
32

713
19,268

580
(170)

(6,829)
  12,849

  —
(18,483)
20,303
(2,208)

—
(583)

(1,630)
383
(196)

1,102
—

(70)
(1,382)

(164)
207

(2,305)
(1,675)

(715)
206

(4,446)

(372)

6,649
17,164

 ¥23,813

 $156,417

45,755

3,472

613

1,472

      (3,547)

957

(849)

—

15,649

2,215

1,010

11,511

14,940

(9,910)

(9,405)

1,096

1,525

232,921

5,062

(892)

(72,431)

 164,660

  (505)

(290,080)

247,206

(28,203)

1,548

(3,880)

(11,662)

11

(1,322)

—

37,618

(1,258)

(50,527)

13,285

—

(25,527)

(11)

(7,255)

—

(19,508)

76

94,701

255,944

 $350,645

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

 (Note 1)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009

2009 2010

 

 ¥14,553

4,257

323

57

137

(330)

89

(79)

—

1,456

206

94

1,071

1,390

(922)

(875)

102

142

21,671

471

(83)

(6,739)

  15,320

  (47)

  (26,989)

23,000

(2,624)

144

(361)

(1,085)

1

(123)

—

3,500

(117)

(4,701)

1,236

—

(2,375)

(1)

(675)

—

(1,815)

7

8,811

23,813

 ¥32,624

2010

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its domestic subsidiaries maintain their accounts and records in accordance 

with the provisions set forth in the Corporation Law of Japan and the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan and in conformity 

with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure 

requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards. The Company’s overseas subsidiaries maintain their accounts and records 

in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles prevailing in their respective countries of domicile.  

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on the consolidated financial statements of the Company 

and its consolidated subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) as required by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan.  

In preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been made 

to the consolidated financial statements issued domestically in order to present them in a format which is more familiar to readers 

outside Japan. In addition, certain notes included herein are not required under accounting principles generally accepted in Japan 

but are presented as additional information.

Certain reclassifications of previously reported amounts have been made to conform the consolidated financial statements for the 

year ended March 31, 2009 to the 2010 presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on consolidated net income or net assets.

The U.S. dollar amounts included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto are presented solely for 

convenience and are translated, as a matter of arithmetic computation only, at ¥93.04 = U.S.$1.00, the approximate exchange rate in effect 

on March 31, 2010. This translation should not be construed as a representation that Japanese yen amounts have been, could have been, or 

could in the future be, converted into U.S. dollars at the above or any other rate.

(a) Principles of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its significant subsidiaries. All significant 

intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. Investments in affiliates (companies over which the 

Company has the ability to exercise significant influence) are, with certain minor exceptions, accounted for by the equity method.

The difference between the cost and the underlying net equity in investments in consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates accounted for on 

an equity basis is allocated to identifiable assets based on their fair value at their respective dates of acquisition. 

Goodwill and negative goodwill are amortized principally by the straight-line method over a twenty-year period. Minor differences are 

charged or credited to income in the year of acquisition.

The balance sheet date of certain consolidated subsidiaries is December 31. Any significant differences in intercompany accounts 

and transactions arising from intervening intercompany transactions during the period from January 1 through March 31 have been 

adjusted, if necessary.

In addition, the balance sheet date of two domestic consolidated subsidiaries is September 30. For consolidation purposes, the financial 

statements of the subsidiaries were prepared as of and for the year ended March 31, 2010.

(b) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make certain 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 

as of the year-end date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. The 

actual results could differ from these estimates.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits with banks withdrawable on demand, and short-term investments which are 

readily convertible to cash subject to an insignificant risk of any change in their value and which were purchased with an original maturity 

of three months or less.

(d) Foreign currency translation

Revenue and expenses denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates prevailing at the respective 

transaction dates. All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the rates of exchange 

1. Basis of Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009
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in effect at the balance sheet date except for those items covered by forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options. 

The balance sheet accounts of the overseas subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance 

sheet date except that the components of net assets excluding minority interests are translated at their historical exchange rates. Revenue 

and expense accounts are translated at the average rates of exchange in effect during the year. Differences resulting from translating the 

financial statements of the overseas subsidiaries have not been included in the determination of net income, but are presented as “Translation 

adjustments” in the consolidated balance sheets.

(e) Investments in securities

Securities are classified into three categories: trading securities, held-to-maturity debt securities, or other securities. Trading securities, 

consisting of debt and marketable equity securities, are stated at fair value. Gain or loss, both realized and unrealized, is credited or charged 

to income. Held-to-maturity debt securities are stated at amortized cost.  Marketable securities classified as other securities are carried at 

fair value with any changes in unrealized holding gain or loss, net of the applicable income taxes, reported as a separate component of net 

assets. Non-marketable securities classified as other securities are carried at cost.

If the fair value of other securities has declined significantly and the impairment in value is not deemed temporary, these securities are 

written down to fair value and the resulting loss is charged to income as incurred.

(f) Inventories

Commodities and raw materials are stated principally at the lower of cost, determined by the moving average method, or net selling value. 

Finished goods, work in process and supplies are principally stated at the lower of cost, determined by the weighted-average method, or 

net selling value.

(g) Property, plant and equipment (excluding leased assets)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. The Company and its domestic subsidiaries calculate depreciation by the declining-balance 

method except for buildings (other than structures attached to the buildings) acquired after March 31, 1998, to which the straight-line method 

is applied. The overseas subsidiaries calculate depreciation by the straight-line method.

(Supplemental information)

Effective the year ended March 31, 2010, the Company has changed the holding purposes and reclassified ¥3,149 million ($33,846 

thousand) of land, buildings and structures, and machinery, equipment and vehicles to “Investment properties, net” in the investments and 

other assets section on the consolidated balance sheets. Rental income and related costs arising from these investment properties are 

included in “Other, net” in the other income (expense) section on the consolidated statements of income for the year ended March 31, 2010.  

Effective the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries changed the useful lives of certain 

machinery and equipment as allowed under the revisions of the Corporation Tax Law of Japan. The effect of this change on consolidated 

operating results for the year ended March 31, 2009 was immaterial.

(h) Leased assets

Leased assets under finance lease transactions which do not transfer ownership to the lessee are capitalized and depreciated over the 

respective lease terms by the straight-line method assuming a nil residual value.

(i) Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries provide an allowance for doubtful accounts principally at an amount based on their historical 

bad debt ratio. In addition, an additional allowance is provided at an estimate of uncollectible amounts with respect to certain specific 

doubtful receivables.

(j) Reserve for sales returns

The Company and certain domestic subsidiaries provide a reserve for sales returns based on the historical sales return ratio.  

(k) Accrued bonuses

The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries provide accrued bonuses for the future payment of employees’ bonuses based 

on the estimated amount of bonus payments.
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(l) Accrued retirement benefits

The Company and certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries have an unfunded defined retirement benefit plan and a non-contributory 

funded pension plan. All other domestic consolidated subsidiaries and certain overseas subsidiaries have unfunded defined retirement 

benefit plans for their employees. Certain overseas subsidiaries have defined contribution pension plan. The unfunded defined retirement 

benefit plans provide for lump-sum payments to eligible employees who terminate their services which are determined by reference to 

their current rate of pay, length of service and the conditions under which termination occurs.  

Accrued retirement benefits for employees of the Company and a domestic consolidated subsidiary represent the estimated present 

value of the projected benefit obligation in excess of the fair value of the pension plan assets.

All other domestic consolidated subsidiaries have adopted a simplified method of calculation. Under this simplified method, accrued 

retirement benefits for employees are stated at 100% of the amount which would be required to be paid if all eligible employees voluntarily 

retired at the balance sheet date.

Prior service cost is being amortized by the straight-line method over ten years which is a shorter period than the average remaining 

years of service of the participants.  

Actuarial differences are amortized in the year following the year in which differences are recognized by the straight-line method over 

ten years which is a shorter period than the average remaining years of service of the participants.

Directors and corporate auditors of certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries (collectively, “officers”) are customarily entitled, subject 

to shareholders’ approval, to lump-sum payments under an unfunded retirement allowances plan.  Accrued retirement benefits for officers 

have been made at an estimated amount based on the consolidated subsidiaries’ internal regulations.

The Company decided to abolish the retirement allowances plan for officers at the Board of Directors meeting held on February 12, 

2009.  At the annual general shareholders’ meeting held on June 26, 2009, a proposal was then subsequently approved to provide retirement 

allowances for these officers when they retire.

 

(m) Income taxes

Accrued income taxes are provided at the amount currently payable.

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries have adopted interperiod income tax allocation by the asset and liability method. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected tax consequences attributable to the temporary differences between 

the tax bases of the assets and liabilities and the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.

 

(n) Research and development costs and computer software

Research and development costs are charged to income when incurred.

Expenditures relating to computer software developed for internal use are charged to income when incurred, except if they contribute 

to the generation of future income or cost savings. Such expenditures are capitalized as assets and are amortized over their respective 

estimated useful lives, customarily 5 years.

(o) Distribution of retained earnings

Under the Corporation Law, the distribution of retained earnings with respect to a given financial period can be made by resolution of the 

Board of Directors meeting held subsequent to the close of the financial period. The accounts for that period do not, therefore, reflect such 

appropriations (see Note 20).

(p) Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivative financial instruments, which include forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options, are used to offset the Group’s risk 

of exposure to fluctuation in currency exchange rates.

Derivatives are carried at fair value with any changes in unrealized gain or loss credited or charged to income, except for those 

which meet the criteria for deferral hedge accounting under which unrealized gain or loss is deferred as net assets. When forward 

foreign exchange contracts or currency options meet certain criteria, receivables and payables covered by the contract are 

translated at the contracted rates.  

The Company evaluates the effectiveness of its hedging activities by reference to the accumulated gain or loss on each hedging 

instrument and on the related underlying hedged item from the commencement of the hedge.
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(a) Partial amendments to accounting standard for retirement benefits 

Effective the year ended March 31, 2010, the Company has adopted “Partial Amendments to Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits 

(Part 3),” (Statement No. 19, issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) on July 31, 2008).

This adoption had no effect on operating income and income before income taxes and minority interests for the year ended March 

31, 2010.

(b) Changes in method of measuring inventories

Effective the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries adopted “Accounting Standard for 

Measurement of Inventories” (ASBJ Statement No.9 issued on July 5, 2006).

The effect of this change on consolidated operating results and segment information was immaterial for the year ended March 31, 2009.

In addition, due to the adoption of this accounting standard, loss on disposal or write-offs of inventories, which was previously included 

in other expenses, was included in cost of sales. The effect of this change was to decrease consolidated operating income by ¥2,216 million 

from the amount that would have been recorded under the previous method.  There was no impact on consolidated income before income 

taxes and minority interests.

(c) Application of accounting standard for lease transactions

Until the year ended March 31, 2008, finance leases, other than those which transferred the ownership of the leased assets to the lessee, 

were accounted for as operating leases.

Effective the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries adopted “Accounting Standard for Lease 

Transactions” (ASBJ Statement No. 13 revised by the ASBJ on March 30, 2007) and the “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Lease 

Transactions” (ASBJ Guidance No. 16 revised by the ASBJ on March 30, 2007).  Under these accounting standards, lease transactions 

commencing on or after April 1, 2008 other than those in which the ownership of the leased assets is transferred to the lessee are 

accounted for as finance leases if substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership have been transferred to the lessee.

Finance lease transactions commencing on or before March 31, 2008, other than those in which the ownership of the leased assets 

is transferred to the lessee, have been capitalized in the consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2009, for which acquisition value is the 

aggregate future minimum lease payments subsequent to March 31, 2008.

A reconciliation of cash and time deposits in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets to cash and cash equivalents in the 

accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows at March 31, 2010 and 2009 is summarized as follows:

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2010 2009 2010

Thousands of
U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Cash and time deposits

Short-term investments (redemption dates within three 
months acquisition date, included in “Securities”

Time deposits (original maturities in excess of three 
months, included in “Cash and time deposits” )

Cash and cash equivalents

¥32,670

—

(46)

¥32,624

¥22,814

999

—

¥23,813

$  351,139

—

(494)

$  350,645
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(a) Securities classified as “Other securities” at March 31, 2010 and 2009 are summarized as follows:

( I ) Securities whose carrying value exceeds their acquisition cost

5.  Securities and Investments in Securities

2010

Acquisition cost Carrying value Unrealized gain Acquisition cost Carrying value Unrealized gain

2009

Millions of yen

Equities

Debt securities

2010

Acquisition cost Carrying value Unrealized gain

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Equities

Debt securities

2010 2009 2010

Thousands of U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Proceeds from sales

Gross realized gain

¥1

—

¥383

382

$11

—

2010

Acquisition cost Carrying value Unrealized loss Acquisition cost Carrying value Unrealized loss

2009

Millions of yen

( II ) Securities whose acquisition cost exceeds their carrying value

Equities

Debt securities

(IV) Proceeds from sales of, and gross realized gain on, other securities

2009

Millions of yen

(III) Securities whose market value is not determinable

Unlisted equity securities ¥937

2010

Acquisition cost Carrying value Unrealized loss

Equities

Debt securities

¥   766

6,524

¥7,290

¥2,743

6,538

¥9,281

¥1,977

14

¥1,991

$  8,233

70,120

$78,353

$29,482

70,270

$99,752

$21,249

150

$21,399

¥   428

6,507

¥6,935

¥1,913

6,523

¥8,436

¥11,043

5,508

¥16,551

¥  7,404

5,507

¥12,911

¥(3,639)

(1)

¥(3,640)

$118,691

59,201

$177,892

$  79,579

59,190

$138,769

$(39,112)

(11)

$(39,123)

¥11,585

1,510

¥13,095

¥6,924

1,510

¥8,434

¥1,485

16

¥1,501

¥(4,661)

(0)

¥(4,661)
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(b) Impairment loss on investments in securities 

For the year ended March 31, 2010, impairment loss on investments in securities of ¥15 million ($161 thousand) is recognized and 

included “Other, net” on the consolidated statement of income. If the fair value of other securities has declined by more than 30% 

from their acquisition costs, the impairment losses are recognized on those securities, considering their recoverability. If the fair 

value of other securities has declined by more than 50% from their acquisition costs, the impairment losses are fully recognized on 

those securities. 

The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries group their fixed assets and intangible assets for business use at each 

business segment unit and these are defined as the smallest identifiable group of assets generating cash inflows. The head office 

building, central laboratories and certain other assets are grouped as one common asset group.

For the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, the carrying value of leased assets and that of production facilities, which are not 

anticipated to be utilized in the future, have been reduced to their respective recoverable amounts and a loss on impairment of fixed 

assets was recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. In addition, the carrying value of certain land has 

been reduced to the recoverable value because the carrying value of this land may not be recoverable and a loss on impairment of 

land was recognized in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2010.  

The Company reviewed the fair value, including the consolidated goodwill, of an acquired subsidiary since expected earnings from 

the acquired subsidiary have not materialized. As a result, the Company reduced the carrying value of the goodwill to the recoverable 

amount and a loss on impairment was recognized in the consolidated statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2010. 

The recoverable values of production facilities are based on the value in use. For the year ended March 31, 2010, the value in 

use of the production facilities is measured at zero because future cash flow is not expected. The recoverable amount of land is 

measured at higher of the net selling value or the value in use. The value in use is measured based on the future cash flows 

discounted by 2%.

Loss on impairment of fixed assets and intangible assets for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 are summarized as follows:

6. Loss on Impairment of Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets

2010

Location Description Classification Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

Osaka and other

Osaka

Osaka and other

United States

Production facilities

Production facilities

Other

Other

Machinery, equipment and other

Leased assets

Land

Goodwill

¥  51

4

68

200

¥323

$   548

43

731

2,150

$3,472

2009

Location Description Classification Millions of yen

Osaka and other

Osaka

Production facilities

Production facilities

Other

Machinery, equipment and other

Leased assets

Goodwill

¥12

3

26

¥41

The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries own rental properties (including land) in Osaka prefecture and other areas. 

Rental income and related costs arising from these properties amounted to ¥257 million ($2,762 thousand) and ¥76 million ($817 

thousand), respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2010. The Company has also recorded impairment loss on these rental properties 

of ¥59 million ($634 thousand) in other expenses.  

The carrying value on the consolidated balance sheets and corresponding fair value of those properties are as follows:

7.  Investment and Rental Properties
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Notes:

(a) The carrying value represents the acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment loss.

(b) The components of net change in carrying value are the acquisitions of real estate properties in the amount of ¥1 million ($11 

thousand) and the decreases are mainly due to depreciation in the amount of ¥41 million ($441 thousand), and impairment loss in 

the amount of ¥59 million ($634 thousand).

(c) The fair value of the main properties is estimated based on a real estate appraisal report issued by independent real estate appraisers.  

Effective the year ended March 31, 2010, “Accounting Standard for Disclosures about Fair Value of Investment and Rental Property” 

(ASBJ Statement No. 20, issued by ASBJ on November 28, 2008) and the “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Disclosures about Fair 

Value of Investment and Rental Property” (ASBJ Guidance No. 23, issued by ASBJ on November 28, 2008).

Lease obligations at March 31, 2010 and 2009 are summarized as follows:

9. Lease Obligations

The average interest rates on short-term bank loans at March 31, 2010 and 2009 were 4.09% and 5.52%, respectively.

Long-term debt at March 31, 2010 and 2009 is summarized as follows:

In order to achieve more efficient and flexible financing, the Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries have concluded line-of-credit 

agreements with certain financial institutions. The status of these at March 31, 2010 and 2009 is summarized as follows:

8. Short-Term Loans and Long-Term Debt

As of March 31, 2009 Net change

Carrying value Fair value

As of March 31, 2010 As of March 31, 2010

Millions of yen

¥3,909 ¥ (99) ¥3,810 ¥4,384

As of March 31, 2009 Net change

Carrying value Fair value

As of March 31, 2010 As of March 31, 2010

Thousands of U.S. dollars

$42,014 $ (1,064) $40,950 $47,120

2010 2009 2010

Thousands of U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Loans from banks with average interest rates of 4.08%, due in 2010

Less current portion included in short-term loans

2010 2009 2010

Thousands of U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Lines-of-credit 

Credit used

Available credit

2010 2009 2010

Thousands of U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Finance lease obligations due in installments from 2012 through 2017

Less current portion

¥184

(184)

¥  —

¥182

—

¥182

$1,978

1,978

$     —

¥17,683

(394)

¥17,289

¥17,581

(540)

¥17,041

$190,058

(4,235)

$185,823

¥1,730

(580)

¥1,150

¥2,150

(647)

¥1,503

$18,594

(6,234)

$12,360
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The aggregate annual maturities of lease obligations subsequent to March 31, 2010 are summarized as follows:

The following table sets forth the funded and accrued status of the plans, and the amounts recognized in the accompanying consolidated 

balance sheets at March 31, 2010 and 2009 for the Group’ s defined benefit plans:

The components of net pension cost for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

10. Accrued Retirement Benefits for Employees

2010 2009 2010

Thousands of U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Projected benefit obligation

Fair value of pension plan assets

Unfunded retirement benefit obligation

Unrecognized prior service cost

Unrecognized actuarial differences

Net retirement benefit obligation

Prepaid pension cost

Accrued retirement benefits for employees

2010 2009 2010

Thousands of U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on pension plan assets

Amortization:

Prior service cost

Actuarial differences

Cost of contribution pension plan

Net pension cost

Thousands of U.S. dollarsMillions of yenYear ending March 31,

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016 and thereafter

¥   580

436

356

244

80

34

¥1,730

 $  6,234

4,686

3,826

2,623

860

365

$18,594

The assumptions used in accounting for the above plans for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

2010 2009

Discount rate

Expected rate of return on plan assets

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%

2.0%

¥   639

171

(88)

68

138

161

¥1,089

¥   594

162

(79)

69

138

154

¥1,038

$  6,868

1,838

(946)

731

1,483

1,731

$11,705

¥ (9,461)

4,602

(4,859)

205

661

(3,993)

(821)

¥ (4,814)

¥ (9,271)

4,395

(4,876)

274

746

(3,856)

(822)

¥ (4,678)

$ (101,687)

49,462

(52,225)

2,203

7,105

(42,917)

(8,824)

$   (51,741)
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The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to several taxes based on income which, in the aggregate, resulted in a 

statutory tax rate of approximately 40.6% for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009. The overseas subsidiaries are subject to the 

income taxes of their respective countries of domicile.

A reconciliation of the differences between the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rates in the accompanying consolidated 

statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

The tax effects of the temporary differences which gave rise to a significant portion of the deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 

31, 2010 and 2009 are presented below:

11. Income Taxes

2010 2009 2010

Thousands of U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Deferred tax assets:

Accrued retirement benefits for employees

Net operating loss carryforwards

Reserve for employees’ bonuses 

Accrued retirement benefits for directors and statutory auditors

Accrued expenses

Accrued enterprise tax

Unrealized intercompany profits 

Loss on impairment of fixed assets

Loss on disposal or write-offs of inventories

Unrealized holding loss on securities

Other 

Gross deferred tax assets 

Valuation allowance 

Total deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabilities:

Gain on exchange of shares

Unrealized holding gain on securities

Other

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets 

2010 2009

Statutory tax rate

Tax loss carryforwards of consolidated subsidiaries

Valuation allowances

Utilization of tax loss carryforwards

Tax credits on research and development costs

Amortization of goodwill

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 

Equity in earnings of affiliates 

Nontaxable dividend Income

Other 

Effective tax rates

40.6 

2.4 

0.5 

(1.0)

(2.1)

2.0 

1.3 

0.2 

(6.2)

(1.3)

36.4 

%

%

40.6 

3.6 

0.9 

(0.4)

(2.8)

1.8 

1.3 

(0.4)

— 

1.0 

45.6 

%

%

¥1,638

1,494

785

15

1,608

277

140

629

771

704

1,536

9,597

(2,795)

6,802

(435)

(16)

(62)

(513)

¥6,289

¥1,686

1,328

708

640

844

386

122

613

511

1,181

1,258

9,277

(2,477)

6,800

(435)

—

—

(435)

¥6,365

$17,605

16,058

8,437

161

17,283

2,977

1,505

6,761

8,287

7,567

16,509

103,150

(30,041)

73,109

(4,675)

(172)

(667)

(5,514)

$67,595
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The Corporation Law of Japan (the “Law”) provides that an amount equal to 10% of the amount to be disbursed as distributions of 

capital surplus (other than the capital reserve) and retained earnings (other than the legal reserve) be transferred to the capital reserve 

and the legal reserve, respectively, until the sum of the capital reserve and the legal reserve equals 25% of the capital stock account. 

Such distributions can be made at any time by resolution of the shareholders, or by the Board of Directors meeting if certain 

conditions are met.

Retained earnings include the legal reserve provided in accordance with the provisions of the Law. The legal reserve of the 

Company included in retained earnings amounted to ¥340 million ($3,654 thousand) at March 31, 2010 and 2009.  

Stock-based compensation plan

As of March 31, 2010, the Company had two stock option plans: the 2003 and 2007 stock option plans. The 2003 stock option plan 

(the 2003 plan) was approved at the annual general meeting of shareholders of the Company held on June 27, 2003. The 2003 plan 

provides for granting options to purchase 295,500 shares of common stock to directors, corporate auditors and certain key employees 

of the Company, and directors and certain key employees of certain consolidated subsidiaries. The exercise price was ¥3,051 ($33) per 

share at March 31, 2010. This exercise price is subject to adjustment in certain cases which include stock splits. The options became 

exercisable on July 1, 2005 and expired on June 30, 2008.

The 2007 stock option plan (the 2007 plan) was approved at the annual general meeting of shareholders of the Company held on 

June 28, 2007. The 2007 plan provides for granting options to purchase 260,800 shares of common stock to directors, corporate 

auditors and certain key employees of the Company, and directors and certain key employees of certain consolidated subsidiaries. The 

exercise price was ¥4,329 ($47) per share at March 31, 2010. This exercise price is subject to adjustment in certain cases which 

include stock splits. The options became exercisable on July 1, 2009 and are scheduled to expire on June 30, 2012.

12. Shareholders’ Equity

Information regarding the Company’ s stock option plans was as follows:

The 2007 planThe 2003 plan

Number of options:

Outstanding at March 31, 2008

Granted

Cancelled

Exercised

Outstanding at March 31, 2009

Granted

Cancelled

Exercised

Outstanding at March 31, 2010

146,100

—

79,050

67,050

—

—

—

—

—

249,700

—

2,700

—

247,000

—

1,000

—

246,000

(Yen)

Weighted average price of shares upon exercise during the year ended 

March 31, 2010

Fair value of options as of the grant date

¥         —

—

¥          —

645

(U.S. dollars)

Weighted average price of shares upon exercise during the year ended 

March 31, 2010

Fair value of options as of the grant date

$         —

—

 

$          —

6.93
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Treasury stock

Movements in treasury stock for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 are summarized as follows:

The Group principally leases production facilities, consisting of machinery, equipment, vehicles, furniture and fixtures, which are 

used in the consumer products operation business and facilities, consisting of furniture and fixtures, which are used in the medical 

devices operation business.  The Group also leases software.

Future minimum lease payments (including the interest portion thereon) subsequent to March 31, 2010 for non-cancelable 

operating leases are summarized as follows:

14. Leases

Thousands of U.S. dollarsMillions of yenYear ending March 31,

2011

2012 and thereafter

Total

 ¥172

385

¥557

 $1,849

4,138

$5,987

Thousands of U.S. dollars

In April 2002 

In April 2003 

In April 2004 

In April 2005 

In April 2006 

In April 2007 

In April 2008 

$  3,000

6,000

7,000

10,000

10,000

11,000

11,000

Revenue from sale of distribution rights:

In March 2002, the Company and Medtronic Sofamor Danek Inc. terminated their joint business in Japan.  As a consequence, the 

Company received in installments the proceeds from the sale of the distribution rights in Japan.  This revenue was recorded in the 

Company’s books of account on a cash basis as follows:

13. Termination of a Joint Business

2010

March 31, 2009 Increase Decrease March 31, 2010

Number of shares

Treasury stock 1,577,568 492 2,198 1,575,862

2009

March 31, 2008 Increase Decrease March 31, 2009

Number of shares

Treasury stock 1,143,617 501,051 67,100 1,577,568

Effective the year ended March 31, 2010, “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” (ASBJ Statement No. 10, issued on 

March 10, 2008) and “Guidance on Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments” (ASBJ Guidance No. 19, issued on March 

10, 2008) have been adopted.

15. Financial Instruments
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(IV) Supplementary explanation of the estimated fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market price, if available. When there is no quoted market price 

available, fair value is reasonably estimated. Since various assumptions and factors are reflected in estimating the fair value, different 

assumptions and factors could result in different fair value. In addition, the notional amounts of derivatives in Note 16. “Derivatives 

and Hedging Activities” are not necessarily indicative of the actual market risk involved in derivative transactions.

(b) Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of financial instruments on the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2010, the estimated fair value and 

unrealized gain (loss) are shown in the following table. The following table does not include financial instruments for which it is 

extremely difficult to determine the fair value. (Please refer to Note II below).

(i) Monitoring of credit risk (the risk that customers or counterparties may default)

In accordance with the internal policies of the Group for managing credit risk arising from receivables, each related division monitors the 

credit worthiness of their main customers periodically, and monitors due dates and outstanding balances by customer. In addition, the 

Group makes efforts to identify and mitigate risks of bad debt from customers experiencing financial difficulties.  

The Group also believes that the credit risk of derivatives is insignificant as the Group enters into derivative transactions only with 

financial institutions with high credit rating.  

(ii) Monitoring of market risks (the risks arising from fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and others)

For trade payables denominated in foreign currencies, the Group identifies the foreign currency exchange risk by each currency on a 

monthly basis and enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge such risk. 

For securities and investments in securities, the Group periodically reviews the fair values of such financial instruments and the 

financial position of the issuers. In addition, the Group continuously reviews market conditions and our business relations with those 

companies to decide whether the shares should be retained or disposed of.

In conducting derivative transactions, the division in charge of each derivative transaction follows the internal policies, which set 

forth delegation of authority and maximum upper limit on positions, and obtains approval from the finance director.  

(iii) Monitoring of liquidity risk (the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its obligations on the scheduled due dates)

Based on reports from each division, the Group prepares and updates its cash flow plans on a timely basis to manage liquidity risk.

(a) Overview

(I) Policy for financial instruments

In consideration of plans for capital investment, the Group raises the required funds. The Group manages temporary fund surpluses 

principally through financial assets with high liquidity. Further, the Group raises short-term working capital through bank borrowings. 

The Group uses derivatives for the purpose of reducing risk and does not enter into derivatives for speculative or trading purposes. 

(II) Types of financial instruments and related risk

Trade receivables, notes and accounts receivable, are exposed to credit risk in relation to customers. In addition, the Group is 

exposed to foreign currency exchange risk arising from trade receivables denominated in foreign currencies. 

Securities and investments in securities are exposed to market risk. Those securities are mainly composed of treasury discount bills, 

interest-bearing government bonds and the shares of common stock of other companies with which the Group has business relationships.

Trade payables, notes and accounts payable, have payment due dates within 4 months. Although the Group is exposed to 

foreign currency exchange risk arising from those payables denominated in foreign currencies, forward foreign currency exchange 

contracts are arranged to hedge the risk.  

Borrowings and lease obligations are raised principally for the purpose of making capital investments or working capital.  

Regarding derivatives, the Group enters into foreign exchange forward and currency option contracts to reduce the foreign 

currency exchange risk arising from the trade payables denominated in foreign currencies. Further information regarding the method 

of hedge accounting, hedging instruments and hedged items, hedging policy, and the assessment of the effectiveness of hedging 

activities can be found in Note 2(o).

(III) Risk management for financial instruments
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2010

Millions of yen

Carrying value Estimated fair value Unrealized gain (loss)

Assets

(i) Cash and time deposits

(ii) Trade notes and accounts receivable

(iii) Securities and investments in securities

(iv) Long-term loans receivable included in other assets

 Allowance for doubtful accounts (*1)

Total assets

2010

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Carrying value Estimated fair value Unrealized gain (loss)

Assets

(i) Cash and time deposits

(ii) Trade notes and accounts receivable

(iii) Securities and investments in securities

(iv) Long-term loans receivable included in other assets

 Allowance for doubtful accounts (*1)

Total assets

2010

Millions of yen

Carrying value Estimated fair value Unrealized gain (loss)

Liabilities

(i) Trade notes and accounts payable

(ii) Short-term loans

(iii) Current portion of long-term loans, included in short-term loans

(iv) Other accounts payable

(v) Current portion of lease obligations

(vi) Income taxes

(vii) Accrued consumption taxes, included in other current liabilities

(viii) Lease obligations

Total liabilities

Total derivatives (*2)

¥32,670

26,397

22,192

410

(16)

394

¥81,653

¥32,670

26,397

22,192

363

—

363

¥81,622

¥ —

—

—

(47)

16

(31)

¥(31)

 

¥14,570

1,709

184

12,748

580

3,452

602

1,150

¥34,995

¥    (177)

¥14,570

1,709

184

12,748

587

3,452

602

1,157

¥35,009

¥    (177)

¥ —

—

—

—

7

—

—

7

¥14

—

$351,139

283,717

238,521

4,407

(172)

4,235

$877,612

$351,139 

283,717

238,521

3,902

—

3,902

$877,279

$   —

—

—

(505)

172

(333)

$(333)
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(*1) Excluding allowances for doubtful accounts recorded individually for long-term loans

(*2) Assets and liabilities arising from derivatives are shown at net value, and an amount in parentheses represents net liability position

2010

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Carrying value Estimated fair value Unrealized gain (loss)

Liabilities

(i) Trade notes and accounts payable

(ii) Short-term loans

(iii) Current portion of long-term loans, included in short-term loans

(iv) Other accounts payable

(v) Current portion of lease obligations

(vi) Income taxes

(vii) Accrued consumption taxes, included in other current liabilities

(viii) Lease obligations

Total liabilities

Total derivatives (*2)

(Notes) 
I. Method to determine the estimated fair value of financial instruments and other matters related to securities and derivative transactions.  

Assets
(i)  Cash and time deposits and (ii) trade notes and accounts receivable

Since these items are settled in a short period of time, their carrying values approximate the fair value.   

(iii) Securities and investments in securities
The fair values of stocks are based on quoted market prices.  The fair value of debt securities is based on either quoted market price or 

the price provided by the financial institutions making markets in these securities.  For information on securities classified by holding 

purpose, please refer to Note 5.

(iv) Long-term loans receivable 
The fair value of long-term loans receivable is based on the present value of the future cash flows discounted by the interest rate which 

is determined using proper index including interest rate of government bonds plus a credit spread premium, classifying long-term loans 

receivable by credit risk status of the credit risk management and certain remaining period.  The fair value of probable specific bad debt 

is based on the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted by the interest rate described above or the estimated amounts 

collected by the collaterals and guarantees.

Liabilities
(i)  Trade notes and accounts payable (iv) accounts payable – other, (vi) income taxes payable and (vii) accrued consumption taxes

Since these items are settled in a short period of time, their carrying values approximate the fair value.

(ii)  Short-term loans (iii) current portion of long-term loans (v) current portion of lease obligations and (viii) lease obligations 
The fair value is based on the present value of the total of principal and interest discounted by the interest rate to be applied if a similar 

new borrowings or lease agreements were entered into.

Derivatives
Refer to Note 16. “Derivatives and Hedging Activities.”

II. Financial instruments for which it is extremely difficult to determine the fair value.   

Thousands of U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

March 31, 2010

Type

Unlisted equity securities: ¥2,774 $29,815

$156,599

18,369

1,978

137,016

6,234

37,102

6,470

12,361

$376,129

$   (1,902)

$156,599

18,369

1,978

137,016

6,309

37,102

6,470

12,436

$376,279

$   (1,902)

$  —

—

—

—

75

—

—

75

$150

—
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IV. The redemption schedule for lease obligations is disclosed in Note 9.  

The notional amounts and the estimated fair value of the derivative instruments outstanding which qualify for deferral hedge accounting at 

March 31, 2010 were as follows:  

Currency-related transactions

Because no quoted market price is available and it is extremely difficult to determine the fair value, the above financial instruments are not 

included in the preceding table on estimated fair value.  

III. The redemption schedule for receivables and debt securities with maturity dates at March 31, 2010 is summarized as follows:

2010

Due within 1 year
or less 

Due after 1 year 
through 5 years 

Due after 5 years 
through 10 years 

Due after 10 years

Millions of yen

(i) Time deposits

(ii) Trade notes and accounts receivable

(iii) Securities and investments in securities 

 Held-to-maturity debt securities

 Government bonds (national and local)

(iv) Long-term loans receivable

Total

¥32,660

26,397

10,000

5

¥69,072

¥        —

—

2,000

382

¥  2,382

¥ —

—

—

6

¥  6

¥—

—

—

0

¥  0

2010

Due within 1 year
or less 

Due after 1 year 
through 5 years 

Due after 5 years 
through 10 years 

Due after 10 years

Thousands of U.S. dollars

(i) Time deposits

(ii) Trade notes and accounts receivable

(iii) Securities and investments in securities 

 Held-to-maturity debt securities

 Government bonds (national and local)

(iv) Long-term loans receivable

Total

$351,032

283,823

107,481

54

$742,390

$       —

—

21,496

4,106

$25,602

$  —

—

—

64

$ 64

$ —

—

—

0

$  0

16. Derivatives and Hedging Activities 

Notional amountHedged itemsDescription of transaction
Method of hedge 

accounting
Notional amount

(over 1 year)
Estimated fair value

2010

Millions of yen

Deferral hedge 

accounting

Forward foreign 

exchange contracts 

Purchase

  U.S. dollars

  British pounds

Trade – accounts payable

Trade – accounts payable

¥5,995

¥   892

¥1,851

¥   237

¥6,150

¥   914
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There were no derivative transactions which did not qualify for deferral hedge accounting at March 31, 2010.

The fair value of derivatives are based on the prices provided by financial institutions.

Notional amountHedged itemsDescription of
transaction

Method of hedge 
accounting

Notional amount
(over 1 year)

Estimated fair value

2010

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Deferral hedge 

accounting

Forward foreign 

exchange contracts 

Purchase

  U.S. dollars

  British pounds

Trade – accounts payable

Trade – accounts payable

$64,435

$  9,587

$19,895

$  2,547

$66,101

$  9,824

Basic net income per share has been computed based on the net income available for distribution to shareholders of common stock 

and the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the year. Diluted net income per share has been 

computed based on the net income available for distribution to the shareholders of common stock and the weighted-average number 

of shares of common stock outstanding during the year after giving effect to the dilutive potential of the shares of common stock 

issuable upon the exercise of stock options issued by the Company. The amounts per share of net assets have been computed based 

on the net assets available for distribution to the shareholders of common stock and the number of shares of common stock 

outstanding at the year end.  

Cash dividends per share represent the cash dividends proposed by the Board of Directors meeting as applicable to the respective 

years together with the interim cash dividends paid.

17. Amounts per Share

2010 2009 2010

U.S. dollarsYen

Net income:

  Basic

  Diluted

Cash dividends

Net assets

¥225.88

—

62.00

2,061.79

¥215.89

215.80

58.00

1,861.14

$2.43

—

0.67

22.16

Effective the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company adopted new accounting standards, “Accounting Standard for Related Party 

Disclosures” (ASBJ Statement No.11) and “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Related Party Disclosures” (ASBJ Guidance No. 13).

There were no changes in scope of disclosure for the year ended March 31, 2009 as a result of the adoption of these standards.

Related party transactions for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

18. Related Party Transactions

Nature of transactionsName of related partiesType 2009 20102010

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

Director of the

Company

Director of the

Company

Kazumasa 

Kobayashi

Yutaka 

Kobayashi

Contribution

Exercise of stock

options

Exercise of stock

options

¥10

—

—

¥10

14

14

$107

—

—
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Kazumasa Kobayashi directly owned 0.24% of the Company’s shares both at March 31, 2010 and 2009.

Yutaka Kobayashi directly owned 0.21% of the Company’s shares at March 31, 2009.

The contribution amounts to the Kobayashi International Scholarship Foundation for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 was 

determined by examining the details of the transaction.

The Kobayashi International Scholarship Foundation owns 3 million shares (7.34%) of the Company both at March 31, 2010 and 2009.

“Exercise of stock options” represented the payment to the Company upon the exercise of stock options.  

Regarding shares of Itoh Kanpo Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., the Company sold all the shares (22,050 shares, 33.4% of outstanding 

shares) to Itoh Kanpo Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. on April 28, 2009.

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries are engaged primarily in the manufacture and sale of products and wholesale 

operations principally in Japan.

Business Segment Information

The business segment information of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 

is outlined as follows:

19. Segment Information

2010

Millions of yenType of transactionsRelationship with 
related parties

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Type of businessName of companyType

Affiliate Itoh Kanpo 

Pharmaceutical 

Co., Ltd.

Sale of affiliated 

company’s share

Manufacturing 

and sales

Proceeds from 

sales of shares

Loss on sales 

of shares

¥ 3,500

¥(1,456)

$ 37,618

$(15,649)

2010

Consumer
Products
Operation

Medical Devices 
Operation

Other
Operations

Total
Eliminations

or unallocable
accounts

Consolidated

Millions of yen

I.  Sales and operating income 

    Sales to third parties

    Inter-segment sales and transfers

    Net sales

    Operating expenses

    Operating income 

II. Total assets, depreciation and amortization, 
 loss on impairment of fixed assets 
 and capital expenditures

 Total assets 

 Depreciation and amortization

 Loss on impairment of fixed assets

 Capital expenditures 

¥115,478

37

115,515

99,008

¥  16,507

 
 
 

¥  62,890

3,581

42

2,668

¥12,111

—

12,111

11,967

¥     144

 
 
 

¥11,211

394

222

215

¥1,595

5,485

7,080

6,680

¥   400

 
 
 

¥4,310

128

—

213

¥129,184

5,522

134,706

117,655

¥  17,051

 
 
 

¥  78,411

4,103

264

3,096

¥       —

(5,522)

(5,522)

(5,512)

¥      (10)

 
 
 

¥53,561

154

59

467

¥129,184

—

129,184

112,143

¥  17,041

¥131,972

4,257

323

3,563
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2009

Consumer
Products
Operation

Medical Devices 
Operation

Other
Operations

Total
Eliminations

or unallocable
accounts

Consolidated

Millions of yen

I.  Sales and operating income (loss) 

    Sales to third parties

    Inter-segment sales and transfers

    Net sales

    Operating expenses

    Operating income (loss) 

II. Total assets, depreciation and amortization, 
 loss on impairment of fixed assets 
 and capital expenditures

 Total assets 

 Depreciation and amortization

 Loss on impairment of fixed assets

 Capital expenditures 

¥112,594

27

112,621

96,710

¥  15,911

¥  71,214

3,557

12

3,111

¥11,325

—

11,325

11,880

¥     (555)

 

¥11,534

420

26

223

¥1,774

5,507

7,281

6,808

¥   473

¥4,080

135

3

70

¥25,693

5,534

131,227

115,398

¥15,829

¥86,828

4,112

41

3,404

¥       —

(5,534)

(5,534)

(5,523)

¥       (11)

¥38,382

102

—

64

¥125,693

—

125,693

109,875

¥  15,818

¥125,210

4,214

41

3,468

As described in Note 3(b), effective the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries adopted 

“Accounting Standard for Measurement of Inventories” (ASBJ Statement No.9 issued on July 5, 2006). The effect of this change was 

to decrease operating income in the “Consumer Products Operation” segment, the “Medical Devices Operation” segment and the 

“Other Operation” segment by ¥2,078 million, ¥134 million and ¥4 million, respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2009 over the 

corresponding amounts which would be recorded under the previous method.

2010

Consumer
Products
Operation

Medical Devices 
Operation

Other
Operations

Total
Eliminations

or unallocable
accounts

Consolidated

Thousands of U.S. dollars

I.  Sales and operating income 

    Sales to third parties

    Inter-segment sales and transfers

    Net sales

    Operating expenses

    Operating income 

II. Total assets, depreciation and amortization, 
 loss on impairment of fixed assets 
 and capital expenditures

 Total assets 

 Depreciation and amortization

 Loss on impairment of fixed assets

 Capital expenditures 

$1,241,165

398

1,241,563

1,064,145

$     77,418

 
 

$   675,946

38,489

451

28,676

$130,170

—

130,170

128,622

$    1,548

$120,497

4,235

2,386

2,311

$17,143

58,953

76,096

71,797

$  4,299

$46,324

1,375

—

2,289

$1,388,478

59,351

1,447,829

1,264,564

$   183,265

$   842,767

44,099

2,837

33,276

$         —

(59,351)

(59,351)

(59,244)

$      (107)

$575,677

1,656

635

5,019

$1,388,478

—

1,388,478

1,205,320

$   183,158

$1,418,444

45,755

3,472

38,295
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Geographic Segment Information

The geographic segment information of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 is 

outlined as follows:

2010

North America Europe Asia Total
Eliminations and 

unallocable 
accounts

Consolidated

Millions of yen

I.  Sales and operating income (loss) 

    Sales to third parties

    Inter-segment sales and transfers

    Net sales

    Operating expenses

    Operating income (loss) 

II. Total assets

    Total assets

¥  3,075

—

3,075

3,525

¥(450)

¥11,482

Japan

¥122,754

1,334

124,088

106,831

¥  17,257

¥  78,498

¥1,389

3

1,392

1,317

¥     75

¥   760

¥1,966

1,213

3,179

2,998

¥   181

¥1,827

¥129,184

2,550

131,734

114,671

¥  17,063

¥  92,567

¥       —

(2,550)

(2,550)

(2,528)

¥      (22)

¥39,405

¥129,184

—

129,184

112,143

¥  17,041

¥131,972

2009

North America Europe Asia Total
Eliminations and 

unallocable 
accounts

Consolidated

Millions of yen

I.  Sales and operating income (loss) 

    Sales to third parties

    Inter-segment sales and transfers

    Net sales

    Operating expenses

    Operating income (loss) 

II. Total assets

    Total assets

¥  3,290

17

3,307

3,988

¥    (681)

¥13,031

Japan

¥119,253

1,092

120,345

103,753

¥  16,592

¥  86,750

¥1,275

43

1,318

1,428

¥  (110)

¥   760

¥1,875

1,346

3,221

3,211

¥     10

¥1,654

¥125,693

2,498

128,191

112,380

¥   15,811

¥102,195

¥       —

(2,498)

(2,498)

(2,505)

¥         7

¥23,015

¥125,693

—

125,693

109,875

¥  15,818

¥125,210

2010

North America Europe Asia Total
Eliminations and 

unallocable 
accounts

Consolidated

Thousands of U.S. dollars

I.  Sales and operating income (loss) 

    Sales to third parties

    Inter-segment sales and transfers

    Net sales

    Operating expenses

    Operating income (loss) 

II. Total assets

    Total assets

$  33,050

—

33,050

37,887

$   (4,837)

$123,409

Japan

$1,319,368

14,338

1,333,706

1,148,227

$   185,479

$   843,702

$14,929

32

14,961

14,155

$     806

$  8,169

$21,131

13,038

34,169

32,223

$  1,946

$19,636

$1,388,478

27,408

1,415,886

1,232,492

$   183,394

$   994,916

$         —

(27,408)

(27,408)

(27,172)

$      (236)

$423,528

$1,388,478

—

1,388,478

1,205,320

$   183,158

$1,418,444
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(a) Appropriation of retained earnings

The following appropriation of retained earnings of the Company, which has not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements 

for the year ended March 31, 2010, was approved at the Board of Directors meeting held on May 27, 2010:

20. Subsequent Events

Thousands of U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Cash dividends (¥33.00 = $0.35 per share) ¥1,351 $14,521

As described in Note 3(b), effective the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries adopted 

“Accounting Standard for Measurement of Inventories” (ASBJ Statement No.9 issued on July 5, 2006). The effect of this change was to 

decrease operating income in the “Japan” segment, the “North America” segment, the “Europe” and the “Asia” segment by ¥2,154 

million, ¥33 million, ¥14 million and ¥14 million, respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2009 over the corresponding amounts which 

would have been recorded under the previous method.

Overseas Sales Information

Overseas sales information has been omitted for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 because overseas sales, consisting of 

export sales of the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries and sales (other than exports to Japan) of overseas 

consolidated subsidiaries constituted less than 10% of total consolidated sales.

(b) Spin-off of Kobayashi Medical Co., Ltd.

Pursuant to a resolution approved by the Board of Directors’ meeting held on November 27, 2009, the Company has spun off 

Kobayashi Medical Co., Ltd., which was involved in the business of manufacturing, importing and selling medical devices. The spin-off 

has become effective on April 1, 2010.

Since 1992, the Company had operated the medical devices business as one division of the Company. The Company decided 

to spin off a new company for this business in order to enhance the competitiveness and specialization and to improve productivity in 

response to the significant changes in market environment, such as the move forward medical cost saving and the drop in official 

medical prices in Japan.

In accordance with the Company’s spin-off plan approved at the Board of the Directors’ meeting held on January 22, 2010, the 

Company has spun off Kobayashi Medical Co., Ltd., which was part of former medical devices business division of the Company. 

The Company acquired all the shares (100,000 shares) of Kobayashi Medical Co., Ltd. The effective and registered date of the 

spin-off was April 1, 2010.

Amounts of common stock, net assets, total assets, total liabilities of Kobayashi Medical Co., Ltd. as of April 1, 2010 and sales 

amount arising from the medical devices business recorded by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2010 were ¥50 million 

($537 thousand), ¥1,437 million ($15,445 thousand), ¥4,823 million ($51,838 thousand), ¥3,386 million ($36,393 thousand), and 

¥10,160 million ($109,200 thousand), respectively.
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1886

1919

1940

1956

1967

1969

1972

1975

1982

1990

1993

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2008

2009

Founder Chubei Kobayashi established Kobayashi Seidaido, Ltd., an unlimited general partnership in the Monzen-cho

district of Naka-ku, Nagoya.

The Company sold general merchandise, cosmetics, and Western liquor.

Established Kobayashi Daiyakubo, Ltd. in Nishi-ku, Osaka

Spun off the manufacturing unit of Kobayashi Daiyakubo, Ltd. to establish Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Kobayashi Daiyakubo Co., Ltd. and Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. were merged and renamed Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Relocated the Head Office to Chuo-ku, Osaka

Launched Ammeltz, a treatment for sore shoulders

Launched Bluelet, a deodorizing toilet bowl cleanser that became the Company’s first toiletries product

Formed partnership with C.R. Bard, Inc. of the U.S. to establish Medicon, Inc.

Launched Sawaday, a deodorizing air freshener for toilets

Established Toyama Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Acquired Shield Healthcare Centers to enter the field of home nursing care services

Established Sendai Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Established Shanghai Kobayashi Friendship Daily Chemicals Co., Ltd. in China

Established Kobayashi Healthcare, Inc. in the U.S.

Listed on the Second Section of the Osaka Securities Exchange. Conducted a 1.5-for-1 stock split

Introduced the in-house company and executive officer systems

Listed on the first sections of the Tokyo Stock Exchange and Osaka Securities Exchange

Spun-off the Trade Company to form Kobashou Co., Ltd.

Established Kobayashi Healthcare Europe, Ltd. in U.K.

Acquired Kiribai Chemical Co., Ltd.

Sold all shares of Kobayashi Sofamor Danek K.K., following the dissolution of a joint venture agreement

Established Kobayashi Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. in Hong Kong

Took over the Tochucha health food business of Hitachi Zosen Bio Corporation

Conducted a 1.5-for-1 stock split

Reorganized the Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Group into four business headquarters

Launched first product under the proprietary Kobamed brandname in the Medical Devices Operation

Formed an equity-based alliance with Itoh Kanpo Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Made eVent Medical Ltd. a subsidiary

Made Heatmax, Inc. a consolidated subsidiary

Kobashou Co., Ltd. and Mediceo Paltac Holdings Co., Ltd. conducted share exchange.

Established Kiribai Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. through the corporate division of Kiribai Chemical Co., Ltd. to consolidate the 

manufacturing of disposable body warmers

Cancelled capital tie-up with Itoh Kanpo Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
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As of March 31, 2010

Toyama Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Sendai Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Ehime Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Kiribai Chemical Co., Ltd.

Kiribai Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Plax Co., Ltd.

SP-Planning, Inc.

Archer Corporation

Suehiro Sangyo Co., Ltd.

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Life Service Co., Ltd.

Kobayashi Health Pharmaceutical Sales Co., Ltd.

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Distribution Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing of pharmaceuticals and other products

Manufacturing of pharmaceuticals and other products

Hygienic and paper goods manufacturing

Disposable body warmer sales

Disposable body warmer manufacturing

Synthetic resin products manufacturing

Displays and model production

Advertising, planning and creation

Daily goods sales

Insurance agency and real estate management

Transportation Services

Toyama, Japan

Niihama, Ehime, Japan

Yodogawa-ku, Osaka, Japan

Mita, Hyogo, Japan

Toyama, Japan

Chuo-ku, Osaka, Japan

Chuo-ku, Tokyo

Chuo-ku, Osaka, Japan

Chuo-ku, Osaka, Japan

Chuo-ku, Osaka, Japan

Chuo-ku, Osaka, Japan

¥100 million

¥200 million

¥77 million

¥49 million

¥49 million

¥95 million

¥10 million

¥10 million

¥15 million

¥10 million

¥100 million

¥10 million

Marketing and sales promotion activities 
of health foods

Information gathering on healthcare business and 
asset management

Yamato-cho, Kurokawa-gun, 
Miyagi, Japan

Kobayashi Healthcare, LLC.

Kobayashi Healthcare Europe, Ltd.

Shanghai Kobayashi Daily Chemicals Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Trading Co., Ltd.

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

HeatMax, Inc.

Mediheat, Inc.

Thermomax, Inc.

Kobayashi Healthcare of America, Inc.

Kobayashi Pharmaceuticals of America, Inc.

Kobayashi Medical America, LLC.

eVent Medical Ltd.

eVent Medical Inc.

Daily goods sales

Daily goods sales

Daily goods manufacturing and sales

Mail-order sales within China

Daily goods sales

Daily goods sales

Disposable body warmer manufacturing and sales

Disposable body warmer manufacturing and sales

Disposable body warmer manufacturing and sales

Holding company

Holding company

Ventilator manufacturing and sales

Ventilator sales

Georgia, U.S.A.

London, U.K.

Shanghai, China

Shanghai, China

Hong Kong, China

Singapore

Georgia, U.S.A.

Georgia, U.S.A.

Georgia, U.S.A.

Georgia, U.S.A.

California, U.S.A.

California, U.S.A.

Galway, Ireland

California, U.S.A.

US$ 5,110,000

UK£ 14,081

160,326,485RMB

17,694,550RMB

HK$ 1,570,000

S$ 300,000

US$ 1,230,001

US$ 10

US$ 0

US$ 6,200

US$ 1

US$ 23,180,000

€ 2,660

US$ 0.1

Medicon, Inc. Medical equipment and device import and salesChuo-ku, Osaka, Japan ¥160 million

Consumer Products Operation Medical Devices Operation Other Operations

LocationCompany

Domestic Consolidated Subsidiaries

Overseas Consolidated Companies

Equity-Method Affiliates

Capital Main Business

Notes:

1. The following companies are Specified Subsidiaries as defined by Japanese law: Toyama Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.; Sendai Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.; Shanghai Kobayashi Daily Chemicals 

Co., Ltd.; Kobayashi Healthcare, LLC; and Kobayashi Medical America, LLC.

2. Itoh Kanpo Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was excluded from the scope of equity-method application as a result of Kobayashi Pharmaceutical selling off all its shares in Itoh Kanpo Pharmaceutical stock.

3. At the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on November 27, 2009, Kobayashi Pharmaceutical spun-off Kobayashi Medical Co., Ltd, which was part of former medical devices business division of the Company. 

The spin-off became effective on April 1, 2010.
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Name Percentage of Total Shares Held (%)

Stock Price
(Right Axis)

Trading Volume
(Left Axis)

As of March 31, 2010

Corporate Name:

Foundation:

Head Office:

Representative Director:

Number of Employees:

Consolidated Subsidiaries:

Non-consolidated Subsidiaries:

KOBAYASHI PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.

August 22, 1919

26

4

1
 

Corporate Data

Stock Price and Trading Volume

Investor Information
Common Stock:

Number of Shares Authorized:

Number of Shares Issued:

Number of Shareholders:

Stock Exchange Listing:

Annual Shareholders’ Meeting:

Investor Relations:

E-mail

U  R  L

F  A  X

Phone

Major Shareholders Shareholder Composition

11.3

7.3

6.3

4.1

3.4

3.2

2.8

2.7

2.5

1.7

Akihiro Kobayashi

Kobayashi International Scholarship Foundation

Yukako Iue

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (trust accounts)

Ikuko Watanabe

Teruhisa Miyata

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (trust accounts 4G)

Ohtori Co., Ltd.

Forum Co.,Ltd

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Business Partners account

Treasury 
Stock

3.71%

Banks

1.15%

1 The percentage of total shares held is calculated  by deducting 1,575,862 shares 

   of treasury stock.

Other Financial
Institutions

2.63%

Individuals 
and Other

44.03%

12.63%

Trust Banks
(Incl. trust accounts)

Other 
Corporations

16.71%

Foreign Corporations

19.08%

KDX Kobayashi Doshomachi Bldg., 4-10, 
Doshomachi 4-chome, Chuo-ku, 
Osaka 541-0045, Japan

Tokyo Stock Exchange 1st Section, 
Osaka Securities Exchange 1st Section

Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 
Banking Corporation

Yutaka Kobayashi, President 
(Appointed president on June 29, 2004)

2,359 (Consolidated)  
1,368 (Unconsolidated)

Affiliates Accounted for by 
the Equity Method:

Transfer Agent / Institution
Managing Designated

¥3,450 million

170,100,000

42,525,000

11,884

June

KOBAYASHI PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.

Corporate Communication Department

 +81-6-6222-0142

 +81-6-6222-4261

 info@kobayashi.co.jp

 http://www.kobayashi.co.jp/english/index.shtml
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